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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603*27l-5034 1■800-852-3345 Ext 5034

Fax: 603-271-5166 TOP Aecesi: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nb.gov

June 6, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with Community Crossroads, Atkinson,
NH 03811 to provide developmental and acquired brain disorder services including but not limited to
the coordination and support of statewide training and consultation initiatives for area agencies, by
increasing the price limitation by $146,500 from $24,019,532 to $24,166,032 with no charige to the
contract completion date of June 30, 2021 effective July 1, 2020 or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later. 100% General Funds.

The original contracts vwre approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item #54.

Vendor Name Vendor
Code

Area
Served

Current
Amount

Increase
(Decreas

e)

Revised
Amount

Area Agency of Greater
Nashua, Inc.

155784-
8001

Nashua $8,733,112 $0 $8,733,112

Behavioral Health &
Developmental

Services of Strafford
County, Inc.

177278-
8002

Dover $7,711,870 $0 $7,711,870

Community Bridges 155658-
8001

Concord $8,554,494, $0 $8,554,494

Community
Crossroads, Inc.

155293-
8001

Atkinson $9,364,006 $146,500 $9,510,506

Developmental
Services of Sullivan

County

167142-
8001

Claremont $7,043,089 $0 $7,043,089

Lakes Region
Community Services

Council

177251-
8002

Laconia $8.8301208 $0 $8,830,208
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Monadnock

Developmental
Services. Inc.

177280-

B002
Keene $7,502,363 $0 $7,502,363

Moore Center Services.
Inc.

154355-

B001
Manchester $8,061,280 $0 $8,061,280

Northern Human

Services

177222-

B004
Conway $7,021,128 $0 $7,021,128

One Sky Community
Services

155666-

B001
Portsmouth $9,264,002 $0 $9,264,002

Total: $24,019,532 $146,500 $24,166,032

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2020, and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2021. upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation
and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be latjelled as sole source. This request is
sole source because the agreement is not subject to the competitive bidding requirement. Revised
Statute Annotated 171-A establishes area agencies as nonprofit corporations designated to serve a
geographic area established by rules adopted by the Department to provide services to
developmentally disabled individuals in that area. Pursuant to Revised Statute Annotated 171-A;
18, I., once designated, the contractor will be the primary recipient of funds provided by the
Department for use in establishing, operating and administering supports and services as well as
coordinating these with existing services on behalf of individuals with developmental disabilities in
the area.

The purpose of this request is to provide statewide coordination and support of training and
consultation initiatives for the other designated area agencies.

The Contractor functions as an integral part of the Organized Health Care Delivery System
operated by the Bureau of Developmental Services and approved by the Center for Medicare and
Medicaid Services under the authority of three Medicaid funded Home and Community-Based Care
Senrices v^ivers. Services provided by area agencies include, but are not limited to,family-centered
early supports;, and services to persons with acquired brain disorders.

Statewide coordination and support of training and consultation initiatives for other
designated area agencies will create efficiencies and effective service delivery, statewide, for
individuals with developmental disabilities and acquired brain disorders.
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Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, other designated area agencies
will not have access to necessary training and consultation initiatives that support and enhance the
comprehensive service delivery for individuals with developmental disabilities and acquired brain
disorders.

Area served: Statewide

ully submiRespe

.oh A. Shibinelte

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join (Mmmunities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Financial Details

05-95-93-930010-7013 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, OIV OF

DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Area Agency of Grealer Nashua (Vendor Code 155784-B001

Fiscal Year Class'Account Class Title Job Number
Current Authorized

Budget
lncrease/(Oecrease)

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007013 $346,116 $0 $346,116

2021 102-500731 Contracts for prooram services 93007013 $343,326 $0 $343,326

Subtotal $689,442 $0 $689,442

Behavioral Heallh 8 Developrnental Services of StraKord Couniy (Vendor Code 17727S-B002)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er
Current Authorized

Budget
lncrease/(Decreasa)

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 ' Contracts for prooram services 93007013 $213,770 $0 $213,770

2021 102-500731 Contracts lor orooram services 93007013 $219,472 $0 $219,472

Subfo'a' $433,242 $0 $433,242

Fiscal. Year Class 1 Account. Class Title . Job Number
Current Authorized

Budoet
lncrease/(Decrease)

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007013 $615,617 $0 $615,617

2021 102-500731 Contracts lor orooram services 93007013 $617,777 $0 $617,777

Subtotal $1,233,394 $0 $1,233,394

Community Crossroads, Inc. (Vendor Code 155293-B001

Fiscal Year Class f Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/( Decrease)
Revised Modified^

Budget <

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $496,971 $0 $496,971

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services <93007013 $499,971 $0 $499,971

Subtotal $996,942 $0 $996,942

Developmental Services of Sullivan Counf (Venda Code 167142-8001)

Fiscal Year Class'Account Class Title ; Job Number Revised Budget Increase/iDecrease)
Revised Modified'

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $157,125 $0 $157,125

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007013 $149,704 $0 $149,704

Subtotal $306,629 $0 $306,629

Lakes Region Community Services Council (Vendor Code 177251-B002)

Fiscal Year Class'Account Class Title Job Number Revlsecl Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007013 $1,026,204 SO $1.026.204

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007013 $1,032,004 $0 $1.032.004

Subfo'a' $2,058,208 $0 $2,058,208

Morwdnock Developmenlal Services (Vendor Code 177280-B002)

Fiscal Year Class' Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Oecrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007013 $270,979 $0 $270,979

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007013 $245,644 SO $245,644

Subtotal $516,623 SO $516,623

ARichment

Financial Detail
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Financial Details

Moo2.C©nt2_S^jc»JnC;JV2tdof_CodeJ54M^B001

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Numljer Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budaet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 93007013 $181,650 $0 $181,550

2021 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 93007013 $176,540 $0 $176,540

Subtotal $356,090 $0 $358,090

Northern Human Services (Verxlor Code 177222-B004)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Numl>er Revised Budget Increase/! Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budaet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 93007013 $246,476 $0 $246,476

2021 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 93007013 $244 924 $0 $244 924

Subtotal $491,400 $0 $491,400

Orte Sky Community Services (Vendor Code 15S666-B001)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget Increase/! Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budaet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 93007013 $671,921 $0 $671,921

2021 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 93007013 $667,811 $0 $667,811

Subtotal $1,330,732 $0 $1,339,732

Total Family Support Services $8,423,902 IS. $8,423,902

Anschment

Financial Detail
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Financial Details

05-95-93-930010-7014 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS; DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF. 01V OF

DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, EARLY INVERVENTION (100% Gsnersl Funds)

Area Agency of Greater Nashua (Vendor Code 155784-B001)

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class .Title Job Number
Current Authorized

Budget
lncrease/(Oecrease)

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-600731 Contracts for cxoaram services 93(K)7014 5575.750 50 5575.750

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5497.200 50 5497.200

Subfora/ 51.072.950 50 51.072.950

Behavioral Health & Devekxxnental Services of Strafford Countv (Vendor Code 177278-B(X)2)

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account -Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
. Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-600731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5202.750 50 5202.750

2021 102-600731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5197.048 SO 5197.048

Subtota/ 5399.796 SO 5399.798

CornmunitY Bridges (Vendor Code 155656-8001)

Fiscal Year . Class f Account Class Title Job Numl>er Revised Budget lncreas«/(Oecrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 (Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5245.000 50 5245.000

2021 102-600731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5244.500 50 5244.500

Subfofa/ 5469.500 50 5469.500

Communitv Oossroads, Inc. (Vendor C^ode 15S293-B001)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5704.500 566.500 5791.000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5701.500 50 5701.500

Subtotal 51.406.000 566.600 51.492.500

Developmental Services of Sulivan Count^ (Vendor Code 167142-8001)

Fiscal Year Class f Account' Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Docrea$e)
Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 569.000 50 569.000

2021 102-500731 Corttracis for orooram services 93007014 574,700 50 574,700

Subtotal 5143.700 50 5143.700

Lakes Reqlon Community Services Courtcil (Vendor Code 177251-8002)

Fiscal Year Class/ Account Class Title 'Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 (tracts for orooram services 93007014 560.250 50 560.250

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 554.450 SO . 554.450

Subfora/ 5114.700 50 5114.700

Monadnock Developmental Services (Vendor C^e 177280-8(X)2)

Fiscal Year Class/ Account Class Title Job Number '  Revised Budget lncrease/( Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5115.000 .50 5115.000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5112.500 50 5112.500

Subfofa/ 5227.500 SO 5227.500

Moore Center Services, Inc. (Vendor Ckjde 154355-8001)

Fiscal Year Class/ Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/( Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5296.500 50 5296.500

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5299.650 50 5299.650

Subfofa/ 5596.350 50 5596.350

Nonhem Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-8004)

Fiscal Year . Class/ Account Class Title' Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Dwrease)
' Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 53.498 50 53.496

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 55.050 50 55.050

Subfofa/ 56.546 50 56.546

One Sky Community Services (Vetxfor Code 155666-8001)

,  Fiscal Year ■  Class/ Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5467.250 '50 5467.250

2021 102-500731 (Contracts for orooram services 93007014 5652.700 SO 5552.700

Subfofa/ 51.019.950 50 51.019.950

Total Early Intervention 55.478.996 566.500 55.565.496

Att*chmen( .

FInancI*! Detail
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Financial Details

05-95-93-930010-7852 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF. DIV OF
DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. INFANT - TODDLER PROGRAM PT-C (100% Federal Fund*)

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class I'ltle Job Number
Current Authorized

eudoet
lncrease/(Decrease)

Revised Modified

6udaet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 03007852 5218.800 SO S218.800

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 03007852 5300.140 SO 5300.140

SobtottI 5518.040 SO 5518.040

BehBvtorsI Health & Developmental Services of Suafford County (Vertdor Code 177278-6002)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number •  Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-600731 Contracts for orooram services 03007852 5100.400 50 5109.400

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or orooram services 030078S2 5100.400 SO 5100.400

Subtotal 5218.800 . SO 5218.800

Communtty Brtdpes (Vendor Code 155858-6001)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Numtwr Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 03007852 5190.740 SO 5100.740

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 03007852 5169.080 SO 5180.080

Subtotal 5379.820 SO 5370.820

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 5254.642 SO 5254.642

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or orooram services 93007852 5254.642 SO 5254.642

Subtotaf 5500.284 so 5500.284

Developmerttal Services o( SuSivan County (Vendor Code 167142-6001}

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget tncrease/(Oecrease)
Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 571.220 SO 571.220

2021 - 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 03007852 569.560 SO 569.560

Subtotal 5140.780 SO 5140.780

Fiscal Year Class/ Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease]
' Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-600731 Contracts for orooram services 03007652 5102.760 50 5102.760

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 5102760 SO 5102.760

Subfofaf 5205 520 SO 5205.520

Act«ehm«n(

Finenclai Detail
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Financial Details

Fiscal Year Class/Account . Class Title Job Number Revised Budget Increase/! Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 03007652 S152.400 $0 S1S2.400

2021 102-600731 Contracts (or oroaram services 93007652 S154.060 SO $154,060

Subtotal $306,460 SO $306,460

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Oecrease)
Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for prooram services 93007852 $326,700 $0 $326,700

2021 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 93007652 $326,360 $0 $328,360

Subroraf $655,060 $0 $655,060

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget Increasc/fDecrease)
Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 93007852 $34,700 SO $34,700

2021 102-500731 93007652 $34 700 SO $34,700

Subrofaf S69.400 so $69,400

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Revised Budget lncrease/(Decrease)
Revised ModKied

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for crooram services 93007652 $266,940 SO $266,940

2021 102-500731 93007652 $165,600 $0 $165,600

Subtotal $452,540 $0 $452,540

Total Contract Part C $3,456,604 $0 $3,456,604

05.95.93.930010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, OIV OF
DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% Gen«ral Funds)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Authorized

Budoet
Increase/!Decrease)

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-600731 Contracts for i}roaram services 93005947 $0 $60,000 $60,000

2021 102-500731 93005947 SO $0 SO

Subtotal $0 S60.000 $60,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Authorized

Budaet
Increase/!Decrease)

Revised Modified

Buddet

2020 102-600731 Contracts for ixoaram services 93005947 $104,125 SO $104,125

2021 102-600731 Corttracts for oroaram services 93005947 $104,125 SO $104,125

Subtotal $208,250 $0 $208,250

Total Prooram Suopon $208,250 $60,000 $268,250

Total Priea Soaclfle to Vendor $17,567,752 $146,500 $17,714,252

ARschment

FInsnclsl Oetsll
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Financial Details

Funding Amounts Shared by Vendon as foBows;

For Continuing Education

OS-9S-9>930010-S947 HEALTH AND StXIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF. DIV OF

DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% General Funds)

Fiscal Year Class y Account Class Title . Job Number
Current Authorized

Budget
lncreasef(Decraase)

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93025947 574.690 50 574.890

2021 102-600731 Contracts for orooram services 93025947 574.690 50 574.690

Subtotaf 5149.780 50 5149.780

For FamHy Centered Early Supports and Services (FCESS)

05-95-9S-930010-7013 HEALTH AND StDCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OP. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF. DIV OF
DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number
Current Authorized

Budoet
Increasey(Decrease)

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93017013 5311.000 50 5311.000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93017013 5311.000 SO 5311.000

Subroraf 5622.000 SO 5622.000

05-9S-93-930010-78S2-502 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS; DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF. DIV OF

DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. INFANT • TODDLER PROGRAM PT-C (100% Federal Funds)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Current Authorized

Budoet
lncrease/(Decrease)

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 502-500891 Payments to Providers 03017852 5340.000 50 5340,000

2021 502-500891 Payments to Providers 93017852 5340.000 50 5340.000

Subtotal -  5680.000 50 5680.000

For Room artd Board

05-95-93-930010-71000000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV. DIV OF

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES. DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number
Current Authorized

Budoet
Incre8se/(0ecrease)

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93017100 52.000.000 50 52.000.000

2021 102-500731 Corttracts for orooram services 93017100 52.000.000 50 52.000.000

Subroraf 54.000.000 50 54.000.000

05.95-93-930010-70160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV, DIV OF

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES. ACQUIRED BRAIN DISORDER SERV1C (100% General Funds)

Fiscal Year ' Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Authorized

Budoet
lncrease/(Decrease)

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93017016 5500.000 50 5500.000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for prooram services 93017016 5500.000 50 5500.000

Subtotal 51.000.000 50 51.000.000

Attachment

FlnicKlal Detail
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

State of New Hampshire ,
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

This 1®' Amendment to the Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Community Crossroads,
Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a Domestic Nonprofit Corporation with a place of
business at 8 Commerce Drive. Atkinson, NH 03811.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #54), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$9,510,506 ,

2. Modify Exhibit A-1,' Scope of Services: Detailed Service Descriptions, Section 14, Statewide
Support, Subsectiori 14.1, Paragraph 14.1.3 to read:

14.1.3 Coordination and support of Statewide Training and Consultation Initiatives; and

3. Modify Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services: Detailed Service Descriptions, Section 14, Statewide
Support, Subsection 14.2, Paragraphs 14.2.1 through 14.2.3, by adding Paragraph 14.2.4 to read:

/

14.2 The Contractor shall submit a work plan to the Department for each of the activities in
Section 14.1 within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date, at which time the
Department will provide written approval, thereby, authorizing execution of the proposed
work plan within thirty (30) days of its receipt from the Contractor. The Contractor shall
ensure the work plan Includes, but is not limited to:

14.2.1 Activities to be completed.

14.2.2 Dates by which the activities are to be completed.

14.2.3 Identification of individuals who will complete the activities.

14.2.4 The anticipated invoice amount with detailed breakout of all calculations.

4. Modify Exhibit A-1,'Scope of Services: Detailed Service Descriptions, Section 14, Statewide
Support, Subsection 14.3, to read:

14.3. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports on each approved work plan in Subsection

Community Crossroads. Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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i33f
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Deveiopmentai and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

14.2, above. The Contractor shall ensure reports include, but are not limited to:

14.3.1. Progress of activities completed in the previous quarter.

14.3.2. Activities to be completed In the following quarter.

14.3.3 Potential barriers to completing activities.

14.3.4 Plan to address identified barriers.

14.3.5. Activity invoice submission amounts.

14.3;6. Justification as to why any changes in the work plan were necessary.

14.3.7. Statement attesting to having received Department approval for changes in
any work plan prior to providing any changed services.

5. Add Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services, Detailed Service Descriptions, Section 14, Statewide Support,
Subsectio.n 14.4, to read:

14.4 The Contractor shall work with area agencies to ensure all demographic data collected,
as specified in 2.2.1 of Exhibit A, Scope of Services, is entered into the Online Data Entry
Survey Application (ODESA) by the deadline provided by the Department. The Contractor
shall:

14.4.1 Notify the Department of any changes or updates in NCI surveys used by area
agencies.

14.4.2 Follow up with area agencies to obtain answers to any questions the
Department has relative to NCI results.

6. Add Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 8, and Payment Methodology
for Services that are not paid by Medicaid and not for services in Sections 3 through 7 above,
Subsection 8.1, Paragraph 8.1.3 to read;

8.1.3 The Contractor shall invoice the Department in an amount not to exceed $146,500 for
prior approved services in the work plan identified in Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services:
Detailed Service Descriptions, Subsection 14.2. The Invoice shall include:

8.1.3.1 Completed activities

8.1.3.2. Dates activities were completed.

8.1.3.3: Individuals who completed the identified activities.

8.1.3.4. The Invoice amount for the actual costs incurred for the completed activities,
including detailed breakouts of all calculations and expenses.

8.1.3.4 Quarterly reports detailing the actual costs Incurred for the completed activities.

Community Crossroads, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials,

SS-2020-BDS-01-DEVEL-10-A01 Page 2 of 4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

'•s

All terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In full force and
effect. This amendment shall t>e effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
DdQartment of Health and Human Services

Date
4

Name:

Title:

Community Crossroads. Inc.

Dati Narnd': ^
Title: OvAftQ oP T^itifcrprc^-'

Community Crossroads. Inc.

SS-2020-BDS-01-OEVEL-10-A01

Amendment #1

Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

06/10/20

'Date Name:
Title' Catherine Pines, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Community Crossroads, Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2020-BDS-01-DEVEL-10-A01 Page 4 of 4



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner. Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY CROSSROADS,

INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 19, 1979. 1 further

ccrtily that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID; 64839

Certificate Number: 0004917733

u.

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I9th day of May A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AU-mORITY

I, John OeBaun hereby certify that:

<Naffe of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I- am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Dffleer of

ComfTunity Crossroads
(Corporgtiori/LLC Name) •

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders,

duly called and held on _June a 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders
were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That James Hatson (may list more than one

person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Comrriunity Crossroads to enter into contracts
or agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorised to execute any and
all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, which may in his/her Judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This

authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I
further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate

as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they

have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New
Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

natpri:^ (a i ■
^  SignaturejofElected Officer

O lo voName:

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOrYYYY)

06/08/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A l«ATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERHFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. .
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this'certlflcate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER

FlAt/Crots Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

NAME*^^ Carrie Morgan
SL fh,: (603)669-3218 (903)64S4331
ATORE88- cnwoanScrossaoBncy.oorn

IN8URER(S) AFFORONO COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A! Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Community Crossroads. Inc.,

8 Commarce Drive

Atkinson . NH 03811

INSURER B: NY Marine & General Ins Co 16006

INSURER C;

INSURER D;

INSURER E:

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19-20AIIHnes REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED; NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.'
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

MLICVEFF 1 MLieVBVP )
POLICYNUMBeR IMWDOrfYYYt IMM/DOffYYTI LIMITSTYPE OP INSURANCE

ADDL

IN3D

SUBR
WVD

TOW
LTR

X COMMERCIAL OENERAL UABILHY

CUMMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE lb litrllbb
PREMISES <E« ocOOTtnco)

PHPK2057777 11/01/2019 11/01/2020

MEO EXP (Any on« p«fion)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

OEN-LAGGREOATE UMITAPPUES PER:

PRO
JECTX POLICY

.VAic umi I rue^r

□ ks □
OTHER;

GENERAL AQOREOATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Eaiedd«nH

1,000,000
100,000

5,000

1,000,000

3,000.000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANY AUTOX

1,000,000

BODILY INJURY <P«r p«noA)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOBONIY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNEO
AUTOe ONLY

PHPK20577e0 11/01/2019 11/01/2020 BODILY INJURY (Pv accictsm)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPef iccidanil

Underlnsured motorist 1,000,000

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000

PHUB899527 11/01/2019 11/01/2020 1,000.000

OED X| RETENTION $ ^0.000
OtH-
ER

WORKERS COMPENSA-nON V
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOIVPARTNER/EXECUnVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mindilory lo NH|
II yis. dficrttw under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

0 VVC201900007488(3a.)ME NH 11/01/2019 11/01/2020 E.L EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

E.L DISEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE 500,000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500,000

Crime
PHPK20S7777 11/01/2019 11/01/2020

Limit

Deductible

500,000

5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD101, Additional Ramirlit Sehadule, may ba attaehad II more apaet la required)

(Job «: Job Type; DHHS]
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire, Department of Health & Human Services
Bureau of Dev. Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
1  •

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
(D 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All righU reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Mission • '

Our mission Is to provide people In need of long term supports, either through age or
disability, with the Information, guidance, support and advocacy they need to remain In
their chosen homes and live full. Independent lives.

Vision for Those We Serve

We envision a day when people with long-term care needs will take their place as full
citizens within their communities and have equal opportunities to pursue life, liberty and
happiness.

We envision a day when they will live full and independent lives - lives that Include:

1. A clear vision for their own future with a sense of hope, possibility, and direction

2. A wide range of choices and the ability to determine how to live their lives
3. Strong, healthy relationships with family and friends

4. A safe and stable home to live In as long as they choose

5. Meaningful employment and a livable wage during their working years
6. A broader community that recognizes their Individuality, gifts, and talents.

7. The flexible supports and services they need to live their lives.

8. Accessing all of their civil rights.

Guiding Principles

We believe that those we serve:

1. Should have a broad range of choices
2. Can and should direct their lives. We provide present options and link them to supports,

but they are the "drivers."
3. Need and deserve natural systems of support and relationships
4. Have needs that will change over the course of their lives
5. Thrive best when they are fully Included In their communities and live In non-

Institutional settings

We believe that In order to achieve our mission we must...

1. Respect the uniqueness of every person and family
2. Truly listen to those we serve
-3. Provide flexible, person-centered support
4. Use data to Improve the quality of our services
5. Pay attention and adapt to changes In our environment and to the changing needs of

those we serve

6. Always advocate for the full civil rights of those we serve
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Leone,
To the Board of Directors of McDOnnCll
Community Crossroads, Inc. & KobCVtS
Atkinson, New Hampshire PHOFEssioxALAssocwnox
' , CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO • NOR'm COmVAy
DOVER • CONCORD

STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We haye audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Crossroads, Inc. (a,
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities and changes In net assets, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair, presentation of these financial
statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United-States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material respects,
the financial position of Community Crossroads, inc. as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the
changes, in Its net assets and Its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplemental Information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The schedules of functional revenues on pages 19 and 20 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis, and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures,
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted jn the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated In all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

December 9, 2019
Dover, New Hampshire



COMMUNITY CROSSROADS. INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,496,493 $ 2,021,142
Accounts receivable 1,461,378 1,762,616
Due from related party 18.280 26,280
Investments 866,935 828,133
Other current assets 54,952 - 50,301

Total current assets 4,898,038 4,688,474

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 1,090,748 1,105,873

Total assets $ 5,988,786 $ 5,794,347

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt $ 38,225 $ 47,361
Accounts payable 2,013,498 1,716,220
Refundable advances 207,620 389,332

Accrued expenses ' 74,329 77,020
Accrued payroll, benefits and related taxes 292,917 - 266.952

' Total current liabilities 2,626,589 2,496,885

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Long term debt, net of current portion 645,135 682,159

Total liabilities 3,271,724 3,179,044

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 2,717,062 2.615,303

Total liabllltles and net assets $ 5,988,786 $ 5.794.347

See Notes to Financial Statements

3



CQIVIIVIUNITV CROSSROADS. INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

SUPPORT AND REVENUES

Medicald $ 26,918,717 $ 24.617.862
State of NH - DHHS 1,601.251 1.685,923
Federal grant ■ DHHS 317.382 335,840

. Residential fees . 137,067 .131,845
Client resources 128,911 149,570
Fundralsing 112,738 154,430
Rental Income 111,355 144,749
Production/service Income ' 75,981 59,023

' Other revenues 60,852 90,589
Interest and dividends, net 32,331 21,457
Net realized gain on Investments 12,914 7,607
Contributions and miscellaneous grants • 9,649 126,584
Net unrealized gain on Investments 5,550 14,245
Third party Insurance 1,695 2,511

Total support and revenues 29,526.393 27,542,235

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services;
Case management 1,635.321 1,454,525
Other DHHS funded programs 26,183,471 24.186.613

Total program services 27,816,792 25,643,138

Supporting Activities:
General management 1,538,332 1,336,910
Rental property management 151,152 153,227
Fundralsing 118,397 98,258

Total supporting activities 1,607,881 1,588,395

Total functional expenses 29,626,673 . 27,231,533

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE GAIN ON SALE

OF PROPERTY (100,280) 310,702

GAIN ON SALE OF PROPERTY 202,039 ^

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 101,759 310,702

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,615,303 2,304,601

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 2,717,062 $ 2,615,303

See Notes to Financial Statements

4



COMMUNITY CROSSROADS. iNC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase In net assets without donor restrictions

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets without donor
restrictions to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Net realized gain on investments
Net unrealized gain on investments
Gain on sale of property and equipment

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable .
Due from related party
Other current assets

Accounts payable
Refundable advances

Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll, benefits and related taxes

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of Investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Proceeds from sale of property
Cash paid for closing costs on sate of property

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal payments on long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
I

Cash paid for Interest during the year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND

FINANCING ACTIVITES

$  101.759 $ 310,702

119,360
(12,914)
(5,550)

(202,039)

301,240
8,000
(4.651)

297,278
(181,712)

(2,691)
25,965

444.045

(176,263)
(101,207)

80,869
295,000
(20,933)

77,466

(46,160)

(46,160)

475,351

2,021,142

118,552
(7,607)

(14,245)

322,450
(22,908)
6,926

197,634

(229,173)
27,815
3,937

716,083

(32,636)
(56,615)
32,568

(56,683)

(50,447)

(50,447)

608,953

1,412,189

$ 2,496,493 $ 2,021,142

$  32,901 $ 30,953

Equipment financed by long term debt $  100,000

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY CROSSROADS. IMC.

'  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

N0TE1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Nature of Business

Community Crossroads, Inc. (the Organization) Is a private not-for-profit
organization. It contracts with the State of New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services (DHHS) to provide an array of community based, services
and support for those with developmental disabilities located In eleven New
Hampshire towns, the largest being Plaistow, Derry and Salem. Its major
function is the coordination of services and support for those who are eligible to
receive them. The majority of funding is from two sources, DHHS and Medicaid.
Every five years the Organization must be re-designated by the State as an area
agency to provide community services. The • Organization achieved re-
designatlon In April 2017, for the period of September 2016 through September
2021.

Method of Accounting

The financial statements of Community Crossroads,.Inc. have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States of America, as promulgated by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC).

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared In accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP). which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions Net assets that are not subject to
donor-Imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose In
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as Increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from
net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in

the statements of activities.

8



As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had only net assets without donor
restrictions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with ASC 958 if
the services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be
purchased by the Organization. " There were no items meeting these criteria for
2019 and 2018. No amounts have been reflected In the financial statements for

donated services since the services do not meet the aforementioned criteria;
however, a number of volunteers have donated time to the Organization's
activities.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 825, "Financial Instruments", requires the Organization to disclose estimated
fair values for its financial instruments. The carrying amounts of cash and other
current assets and current liabilities approximate fair value because of the short
term nature of those Instruments.

Cash Equivalents

It Is the policy of the Organization to consider all cash Instruments with a maturity
date of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization's cash
equivalents at June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $14,168 and $13,277, respectively.

Investments

Investments are carried at fair value in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which Is
determined by the quoted market price at year end. Realized gains and losses
from the sale of investments are recorded when the Investments are sold.

Unrealized gains and losses are recorded as they occur to account for
fluctuations In the fair value of the Investments. See Note 5 and Note 6.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at unpaid balances, less an allowance for
doubtful accounts. The Organization provides an allowance for doubtful
collections that is based upon a review of outstanding receivables and historical
collection information. Delinquent receivables are expensed as bad debts and
are added to the allowance based on specific circumstances of the consumer.
The Organization considers accounts receivable to be fully collectable at June
30, 2019 and 2018. Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful account? is
considered necessary.



Property and Equipment

Property and equipment Is stated at cost if purchased or at fair value at the date of
donation in the instance of donated property. Such donations are reported as
unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a

specific use. The Organization's. policy is to capitalize costs for major
improvements and charge repairs and maintenance currently for expenditures that
do not extend the lives of the related assets.

The provision for depreciation is computed utilizing the straight line method over
the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which range from 3 to 30 years.
Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $119,360

, and $118,552, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable
contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an
organization other than a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

Management has reviewed the tax positions for the Organization under ASC 740,
"Accounting for Income Taxes", which establishes the minimum threshold for
recognizing, and a system for measuring, the benefits of tax return positions In
financial statements. Management has analyzed the Organization's tax positions
taken on their information returns for all open tax years (tax years ending June 30,
2017 - 2019), and has concluded that no provision for income tax is required in the ■
Organization's financial statements.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis.. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, benefits, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by
the type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general, fundraising, and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by
function using a reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on
function and use. The costs of providing certain program and supporting services
have been directly charged.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or

net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of
any donor-imposed restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are
reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions If the restriction
expires in the reporting period in which the contribution is recognized. All other
donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction.. When a restriction
expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported In the statements of activities as net
assets released from restrictions.
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Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of
donation. Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the
contributed assets must be used are recorded as net assets with donor

restrictions; otherwise, the contributions are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

The Organization had no net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2019 or
2018.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as they are incurred.

Accrued Vacation

The Organization has accrued a liability for future compensated leave time that
its employees have earned and which is 100% vested with the employees. The
amounts accrued at June 30, 2019 and 2018 were approximately $222,000 and
$203,000, respectively.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August'18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to ail periods
presented.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2019
and 2018:

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related party
Investments

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2019

2,496,493
1,461,378

18,280

866.935

2018

2,021,142
1,762,618

26,280

828.133

$  4.638.173

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating expenses, which approximates $2,425,300 and $2,228,500, at June
30, 2019 and 201.8, respectively.
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NOTE 3. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Organization to
concentrations of credit and market risk consist of cash, investments, and
accounts receivable. The Organization maintains substantially ail of Its cash on
deposit in three financial Institutions. Accounts at these institutions may at times,
exceed federally insured limits. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. There were deposits In excess of
the insured limits of approximately $2,521,000 and $1,965,000 at June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively. Of those excess amounts, $2,521,000 and $1,965,000,
respectively, are Insured by the Depositors Insurance Fund (DIF) at
Massachusetts-chartered savings banks; therefore, at June 30, 2019, they were
not uninsured. There were no uninsured amounts at June 30, 2019 and June 30,

2018.

The Organization also uses a Sweep Repurchase Agreement in which a portion
of its overnight, bank deposit balances are swept Into uninsured repurchase
agreements. The repurchase agreements are backed by the U.S. Treasury.

With respect to investments, the Organization uses three Investment firms to
assist In providing a diversified portfolio of investments with strong credit ratings.
The Organization is exposed to credit risks in the event of default by the issuers
of investments to the extent recorded in the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization received approximately 91% and 89% of Its funding from
Medlcaid for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. At June 30,
2019 and 2018, Medlcaid accounted for approximately $1,438,600 and
$1,695,700 of the balance In accounts receivable, respectively.

The Organization also received approximately 6% and 7% of its funding from
DHHS for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at June 30, 2019 and 2018 consists of the following:

Life In

Years 2019 2018

Buildings 25-30 $ 1,803,871 $ 1,763,920
Land . N/A 200,096 253,096
Equipment and furniture 3-5 488,657 472,389
Vehicles 5 89,548 89,548
improvements 10-20 714.176 703.372

3,296,348 3,282,325
l.ess accumulated depreciation f2.205.600) (2.176.452)

Total property and equipment, net $ 1.090.748 $ 1.105.873
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NOTE 5. INVESTIVIENTS

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization's investments consist of the
following:

2019 2018

Fair

Value Cost

Fair

Value Cost

Mutual funds

Exchange traded funds

Total

$ 608,888 $ 551,284 $ 565,948 $ 520,962
258.047 202.907 262.185 216.387

$  ̂ 754.191 $ 828.133 $ 7?7.949

Components of Investment Income:

Interest and dividends ■

Realized gain on sale of investments
Unrealized gain on investments
Investment fees

Total Investment Income

2019

42,765
12,914

5,550
(10.434)

2018

32,947
7,607

14,245

n1.4901

$  50.795 $ 43.309

The values of the securities are subject to market fluctuations and are uninsured.
See Note 6 for fair value measurements.

NOTE 6. FAIR VALUE IVIEASUREIVIENTS

ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures", establishes a framevvork

for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices In active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements), and the lowest
priority to unobservable Inputs (level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 are described as
follows:

Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the

Organization has the ability to access.

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology Include:
•  quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in

inactive markets;

•  inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset
or liability; and,
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•  inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2
input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset
or liability.

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and
significant to the fair value measurement.

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy
is based on the lowest level of any input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable Inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets
measured at fair value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used
at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the
Organization at year end.

Exchange Traded Funds: Valued at quoted market prices of shares held by the
Organization at year end.

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may
not be Indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.

Furthermore, although the Organization believes Its valuation method is
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result In a different fair value measurement at the reporting
date.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization's investments consisted of
mutual funds and exchange traded funds, all of which utilize Level 1
measurements of fair value. 'The following table sets forth the Organization's
investments as of June 30:

2019 2018

Mutual funds, at fair value:
Capital appreciation funds $ 67,709 $ 64,237
Growth funds 262,894 239,856
Income funds 77,563 87,123

" Bond funds 200,722 174,731
Exchange traded funds, at fair value:

Fixed income funds 140,921 137,457
- Capita! appreciation funds 117,126 124.729

Total investments at fair value $ 866.935 $ 828.133
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NOTE 7. LONG TERIVI DEBT

Long term debt at June 30, 2019 and 2018 consists of the following:

2019 2018

Adjustable rate mortgage note payable to
a bank In monthly installments of $1,154
for principal and Interest at 5.30%. Any
Interest rate change, based on change in
the base rate, will not occur more often

than every five years, beginning May 5,
2013. The note is subject to a
prepayrhent penalty provision whereby
the penalty amount decreases frpm 5% to.
1% during the first five years of the loan.
There is no prepayment penalty for the
remainder of the term. The note Is

secured by real estate and is due May
2028. $ 106,417 $ 115,684

Adjustable rate mortgage note payable to
a bank In monthly installments of $2,841
for principal and interest at 4.28% for the
first five years through October 2022.
After the initial five years ahd the end of
each subsequent review period of five
years, the interest rate shall be adjusted
to the prevailing Five-Year Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston Regular Classic
Advance Rate index plus 2.50%. The
note is secured by real estate and is due
October 2037. 432,576 447,667

Adjustable rate mortgage note payable to
a bank in monthly Installments of $1,354 '
for principal and interest at a rate of
5.00% through January 2021, previously
5.25% through January 2016. After the
initial five years and the end of each
subsequent review period of five years,
the Interest rale shall be adjusted to the
prevailing Five-Year Federal Home Loan
Bank of Boston Regular Classic Advance
Rate index plus 2.50%. The loan is
secured by real estate and is due
December 2030. 142,087 151,029
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Loan payable to a bank In monthly
installments of $1,107 of principal and
interest at a rate of 4%. The loan Is

secured by real estate and Is due in
September 2019.

Less current portion

2.280

683,360

(38.225)

S  645.135

15.140

729,520
(47.361)

Future repayments on the long-term debt are scheduled as follows:

Year Ended

June 30 Amount

2020 $  38,225
2021 37,464
2022 39,048

2023 40,700
2024 42,425
Thereafter 485.498

NOTE 8. LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $500,000 line of credit (LOG) with a bank that Is due on
demand and secured by all assets of the Organization. The Interest rate Is based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1%. The LOG Is subject to annual
renewal. There was no balance due on the LOG at June 30, 2019 or 2018.

NOTE 9. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Under the terms of the Organization's agreement with DHHS, the agency receives
advances during the year based on an approved and/or revised budget.

At the end of each fiscal year, If the amounts advanced exceed actual expenses,
the Organization must receive State approval to spend the excess for specific
purposes. The State has the option to request the return of the excess.

The Organization defers the recognition of the revenue until the year In which the
funds are spent for the purpose agreed to by the State, or the Organization is
notified that It can use the excess for general purposes. Refundable advances of
$207,620 and $389,332 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, consist of
unexpended funds, that have been designated by the DHHS for a specific
purpose.

16



NOTE 10. DEFINED CONTRIBUHON PLAN

The Organization has a 403(b) plan that covers substantially all employees.
Participating employees may elect to contribute, on a tax deferred basis, a
portion of their compensation In accordance with the Internal Revenue Code.
Employees become eligible to participate after three months of employment.
Employer contributions to the plan amounted to $115,078 and $112,523 In 2019
and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 11. CLIENT FUNDS

The Organization serves as a custodian of funds on behalf of certain consumers.
No asset or liability has been recorded for this amount. Client funds held by the
Organization were approximately $457,000 and $389,000 as of June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 12. FISCAL AGENT

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization began serving as the
fiscal agent for another non-profit Organization. The funds held by the
Organization were approximately $4,600 as of June 30, 2019. Additionally, the
Organization is responsible for planning and coordinating the Family Support
Conference for the State of New Hampshire. The Organization received $39,648
from the State of New Hampshire for managing this conference during the year
ended June 30, 2019. The funds held by the Organization for the conference
were approximately $55,000 as of June 30, 2019. No asset or liability has been
recorded for these amounts.

note 13. SPECIAL EVENTS AND FUNDRAISING

Each year the Organization holds fundraising and special events to help support
various programs and projects. The following amounts comprised the net
revenues from special events and fundraising as of:

2019 2018

Golf tournament revenue

Less: golf tournament expense

Net golf tournament revenue

Other special events revenue
Gaming activities
Less: other special events expenses

Net other special events revenue

Special events and fundraising, net

$  39,749
(27.5341

12.215

44,281

28,708

(14.3631

58.626

$  38,629
(21.4961

■  17.133

38,810

76,991

(18.5111

97.290

^  70.841 S 114.423
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NOTE 14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
December 9, 2019, the date the financial statements were available for issuance.
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Community Crossroads Board of Directors

Lorraine Butler (Consumer)

Town Represented - Derry

Kathleen Dayotis

Town Represented-Atkinson

John DeBaun (Treasurer)

Town Represented < Sandown

James DIckerson, DMD

Town Represented - Windham

Cathy Forgit (Secretary) (Consumer)

Town Represented - Hampstead

Kenneth Ferreira Jr. (Consumer)

Town Represented: Londonderry

Dawn George

Town Represented-Hampstead

Laurie GIguere (FSC Liaison) (Consumer)

Town Represented - Salem

Robin Knight (Consumer)

Town Represented: - Sandown

Elaiiie Lavin (Cdnsurner)

Town Represented - Salem

Jadine Levesque (Consumer)

Town Represented: Windham

Cathy Spinney (Consumer)

Town Represented - Pelham

Barbara Strzykalski (Vice President) (Consumer)

Town Represented • Atkinson

James Watson (Vice President) (Consumer)

Town Represented: Derry

Connie Young

Town Represented: Salem



Dennis Powers

Summary of

Qualifications

Professional Experience:

•  Extensive career in health and human services with emphasis
on support of peopie with disabiilties.

•  Senior administrative experience in state government and
private community organizations.

•  Managed large numbers of.empioyees in various settings and
operating budgets up to $168 million.

Non Profit Experience:
•  Chief Executive Officer of two private not-for-profit corporations

in New Hampshire since 1990.
•  Served on several non-profit Boards. President of HEARTS,

Inc. (1990- 1995) and President of Community Support
Network, Inc. (1999 - 2000).

Employment

Experience 2011- Present

Community Crossroads

Atkinson, NH

President and Chief Executive Officer

Serve as the CEO of a non- profit corporation with an operating budget
of $29 miiiion, serving 1,600 individuals and families in the Merrimack
Valley and throughout the state of New Hampshire. Responsible for
strategic visioning, community outreach, new business development;
and relationships with funding agencies including four Medicaid
Community Care Waivers. Developed supports to eiders through
independent Service Coordination while continuing to serve adults and
children with developmental disabilities and adults with acquired brain
disorders.

2003-2011

Community Support Network. Inc.

Concord, NH

Executive Director

Served as Chief Executive Officer of a not-for-profit association
representing the 10 regional area agencies for developmental services in
New Hampshire. Primarily responsible for legislative advocacy: promotion
of best practices; development of new business opportunities; quality
improvement and public education. In 2007 worked with legislative
leadership to draft S.B.138, which effectively ended the waiting list for
services in New Hampshire. In 2010 produced the film Lost in Laconia.



2002 - 2003

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Developmental Services

Concord, NH

Director

Served as State Director of a nationally recognized community system
serving 10,000 people with developmental disabilities and acquired brain
disorders and their families.

Major responsibilities included managing a $168 million budget;
negotiating with federal funding sources such as CMS; representing the
Division before the Governor and various legislative committees;
managing two class action lawsuits; and oversight of three Medicaid
Community Care Waivers.

1990-2002

Region 10 Communltv Support Services

Atkinson, NH

Executive Director

Chief Executive Officer of a not-for-profit corporation serving as the
regional area agency coordinating supports to over 600 individuals with
developmental disabilities from birth to elder years in southem New
Hampshire.

Services included: Housing, Job Support, Service Coordination, Family
Support. Early Supports and Services and other supports as needed.
Region Ten was a participant in several national initiatives including the
Home of Your Own Program and the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation
Self Determination Project. Managed operating budget of $11.6 million
including federal, state, and fundraising dollars.

1988-1990

Career Paths

Harrisonburg, Virginia

Chief Executive Officer

Co-founder and CEO of a private employment referral network for human
services professionals. Responsibilities included financial management of
the organization strategic planning and development of relationships with
public and private, agencies nationwide providing services in mental
health, substance abuse, and developmental disabilities.



1985-1988

Department of Internal Medicine

Medical College of Virginia I

Virginia Commonwealth University

Richmond, Virginia

Administrator

Administratively responsible for the Department of Internal Medicine at a
large state-supported academic health center. Major responsibilities
involved management of a $14 million budget including $7 million in direct
federal grant support; management of human resources including 160
faculty positions. 150 classified staff, 50 hourly employees, and 150
Housestaff (Interns and Residents); management of physical plant,
including space allocation and renovation projects; and liaison with the
MCV Hospital and McGuire V.A. Medical Center.

1982 -1985

Maryland Dept. of Health & Mental Hygiene

Mental Retardation & Deyelopmental Disabilities Administration

Baltimore, Maryland

Director, Intensive Behavior Management Program

Designed and served as first Director of a comprehensive community
based state-wide system of support services to prevent the need to (re)-
institutlonalize individuals with intellectual disabilities and mental illness.

Major responsibilities included management of a $3 million budget;
supervision of 41 State of Maryland employees and 30 employees of the
University of Maryland School of Medicine; management of grants and
contracts with community providers of day and residential services;
supervision of 4 intensive behavioral management community residences
and a 20 person short term treatment program. Also responsible for the
ongoing Implementation of the Grabau v. Hughes settlement agreement.

Director, Phillips Program

Served as the Chief Administrative Officer of an ICF/MR with a licensed

capacity of 100. The Phillips Program was developed in response to the
Knott V. Hughes and Grabau v. Hughes litigations and served as a
transitional program for individuals with intellectual disabilities and mental
illness moving from large institutions to community residences, During the
program's two-year existence, 71 individuals were successfully placed
into the community, allowing the facility to be closed and the resources
reallocated to fund the Intensive Behavior Management Program (IBMP).

Major responsibilities Involved management of a $1.5 million budget,
including 82 professional and para-professional staff positions and
management of the two lawsuits mentioned above.' Simultaneously
responsible for the orderly closure of the facility white developing and
implementing the Maryland Intensive Behavior Management Program.
Managed both programs during the period of July 1983 - May 1984.



1977-1982

Columbus Developmontal Center

Columbus, Ohio

Health Services Administrator

Administratively responsible for the medical department of a state
residential center serving 750 adults and adolescents with developmental
disabilities. Duties Included management of ancillary services such as
pharmacy: emergency medical services; x-ray; laboratory; and dental
clinic as well as a 14 bed acute hospital. Also, responsible for the
coordination of services between the facility and local community
hospitals and physicians, budget preparation, and policy development

Assistant Program Director

Responsible for development of biennium budget for program and
residential services; development of program section of institutional policy
and procedure manual; development of in-service training package for
middle management staff; development of proposal for day-care services
for employee dependents; and participation in the Superintendent's Task
Force to review management practices at the facility.

Unit Manager

Chief administrative officer of a developmental living unit serving 280
adults and adolescents. Unit III consisted of 4 residential buildings with a
staff of 205 professional and direct care staff. Management
responsibilities included interviewing and hiring all unit staff; employee
counseling and evaluation; labor relations t>etween unit administration and
three employee labor unions; development of unit policies and
procedures; and supervision of unit budget for equipment and supplies.
Programmatic responsibilities included: development and implementation
of the annual review process for each client, design and implementation
of in-service training for direct-care and supervisory staff; and monitoring
compliance with ICF/MR standards in certified buildings.

1973-1977

Northern Virolnia Training Center for the Mentallv Retarded

Fairfax, Virginia

Team Leader

Supervised two living units at a state residential training center for people
with developmental disabilities. Unit 3A was a unit of adults and children;
Unit 50 was a unit serving 28 adults. Responsibilities included
supervision of two direct-care teams of fifteen employees, each on a 24
hour basis; design and implementation of individual habiiitation plans;
coordination of community resources, including pre-vocational workshops;
and facilitation of interdisciplinary team meetings.



Education

Developmental Technician

Worked on a living unit of 28 aduits. Duties included supervision of,
evening shift in Team Leader's absence, implementation of independent
living skiils programs, administration of medications, and coordination of
volunteers. In addition, served as a living unit trainer for new staff in
training.

Developmental Aide

Served as an aide on a living unit of adults \Mth physical and
developmental disabilities. Duties included carrying out personal care and
self-help programs and physical therapy. First three months of
employment were spent In classroom training and community placement.
Spent three weeks assigned to a classroom at the Daytime Development
Center in Fairfax. Virginia working with pre-school age children.

M.A. Public Administration; Hospital and Health Services
Administration (1980)
The Ohio State University-John Giehn College of Public Affairs
Columbus, OH

B.S. Psychology (1971)
Saint Joseph's University- Philadeiphia, PA.

Additional post graduate courses taken at George Mason University;
Virginia Commonwealth University; and University of New
Hampshire.

Additional

Professional

Activities

•  New Hampshire Managed Care Task Force (1996)

•  UNH institute On Disability Executive Committee (2002)

•  CQI Leadership Institute - Rivier College (1994)

•  New Hampshire Institutional Review Board (1995-97)

•  GovemoFs Advisory Committee on Children with Chronic Illness

•  Governor's Commission on Area Agencies (2004)

•  Interagency Coordinating Council For Early Intervention (2002)

•  State Family Support Council (2002-2010) ^

•  UNH Family Leadership Series- Group Leader (2007-2011)

•  Executive Producer of film "Lost in Laconia" (2010)

•  Governor's Commission on Health Care Workforce (2016)

Community Board

Memberships

New Hampshire Brain Injury Association

Board Member 2004- 2010

HEART Systems, Inc. Board of Directors .

1990 - 2002 (President 1990-1995) .

Community Support Network. Inc. -

Board Member 1995 - 2002; 2011-present



Cynthia Mahar

Profile ' Research, develop, and oversee statewide projects for the
association of the ten Area Agencies for developmental services
in New Hampshire.

^  ■ Thirty two year career in Human Services in support of people
with developmental disabilities.

■  Twenty years experiencerin senior management

■  Managed a department of sixteen employees for an agency with an
annual operating budget of $15 million.

Experience 2011 - Present
Community Crossroads, Inc. Atkinson, NH
Area Agency Executive Director
•  Organizational operations and services to 1,200 individuals

with developmental disabilities and acquired brain disorders
and their families.

•  Report directly to the Chief Executive Officer.
•  Oversight of $28 million budget.
•  Responsible for the development and implementation of

setting a vision and strategic plan for agency expansion and
growth.

2009-2011

Community Support Network Inc.(CSNI) Concord NH
Director of Special Projects

•  Major statewide projects include: Development of standardized
practices for all ten Area Agencies around Consumer Directed
Services. Coordination of efforts for SB 112 Legislative
Commission focusing on high risk individuals; Coordination of
Quality Improvement activities in New Hampshire including
participation in the National Core Indicators Project.

•  Certified as a trainer and Interviewer for the Supports Intensity
Scale (SIS), a national planning tool being developed in New
Hampshire.

•  Developed and participated in annual state wide orientation for
Service Coordinators, now entering its fourth year.

•  Report to the Executive Director and CSNI Board of Directors.

1993-2009

Region 10, CSS.Inc. Atkinson NH



Community Services Director

•  Senior manager of department serving over 700 individuals with
developmental disabilities and their families. .Operations
management responsibilities for all services provided by the
agency.

•  Reported to Executive Director, and. responsible to the Family
Support Council, a volunteer board, for budget expenditures and
services.

•  Major responsibilities included, assisting individuals and families in
developing community connections, supen/ision, leadership,
contract negotiations, mediation, problem solving, and compliance
with state regulations. Established relationships with state and
local community agencies. Education and advocacy of area
legislators and board of directors.

1990-1992

Director of Service Coordination

■ Held senior management position reporting to the Executive Director..

■ Supervision of 10 Service Coordinators.

• Responsible for budget negotiations.

■1987-1992

Vocationai Services Director

• Managed employment programs and monitored all vocational services
provided by the agency.

• Marketing and networking with local business groups and employers.
■ Established Local Business Advisory Council with stakeholders and

employers.

Education 2006 Masters Degree In Business Administration

Franklin Pierce College Rindge NH

1986 Bachelors of Arts Degree in Human Services Administration

Merrimack College, Nortti Andover, Ma

1980 Associates of Science Mental Health Technology

Northern Essex Community College. Haverhill," Ma.

Member Affiliations

2010 Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire Board



2013 - Community Caregivers

2009-2012 Girls, Inc.

1998 - Present HEART Systems, Board of Directors. Secretary

1998-2004 Children's Coalition. Member

2004-2006 Working Together Partners

1998 Supported Employment Leadership



COMMUNITY CROSSROADS INC

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Dennis Powers President/CEO $140,000 0 0

Cynthia Mahar Area ARency Director $100,000 0 0

•



JefTrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Deborth D. Scheetz

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.5034 1.S00-SS2.334S Ext 5034

Fax: 603-271-5166 TDD Access; 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 14. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Nevy Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports and
Services, to enter into sole source agreements with the ten (10) vendors listed in the table below
to provide developmental and acquired brain disorder services, with a total price limitation of
$24,019,532 of which $6,451,780 is a shared amount among all vendors. The shared amount

*  provides family centered early supports and services; room and board reimbursement; and
community education assistance, of which there is no maximum or minimum service volume
guarantee, effective July 1, 2019, or on the date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later, through June 30, 2021. 17% Federal Funds, 83% General Funds.

Summary of contracted amounts by Vendor:

Vendor Name City/Town
Price Specific to

Vendor

Price Limitation

Shared by All
Vendors

Total Price

Limitation

Area Agency of Greater
Nashua, Inc.

Nashua
$2,281,332 $6,451,780 $8,733,112

Behavioral Health &

Developmental Services of
Stratford County, Inc.

Dover

$1,260,090- $6,451,780 $7,711,870

Community Bridges Concord $2,102,714 $6,451,780 $8,554,494

Community Crossroads, Inc. Atkinson $2,912,226 $6,451,780 $9,364,006

Developmental Services of
Sullivan County

Claremont
$591,309 $6,451,780 $7,043,089

Lakes Region Community
Services Council

Laconia
■  32,378,428 $6,451,780 $8,830,208

Monadnock Developmental
Services, Inc.

Keene
$1,050,583 $6,451,780 $7,502,363

Moore Center Services. Inc. Manchester $1,609,500 $6,451,780 $8,061,280

Northern Human Services Conway $569,348 $6,451,780 $7,021,128

One Sky Community Services,
Inc.

Portsmouth
$2,812,222 $6,451,780 $9,264,002

Total $17,567,752 $6,451,780 $24,019,532
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2. Contingent upon the approval of Requested Action 1, authorize the Department of Health and
Human Services to make an advance payment available in the first quarter of State Fiscal Years
2020 and 2021 to each vendor, up to a maximum of one-twelfth (1/12) of State Fiscal Years 2020
and 2021 funding for each respective Vendor in each respective State Fiscal Year.

If these requests are approved, advance payments available under these agreements will only be made
after the Department has conducted an extensive financial review of the applicable Area Agencies, and
only if it is determined that an advance payment is necessary to assure continuity of programs and
services to clients.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2020 and SFY 2021,
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets.

See attached financial details

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because these agreements are not subject to the competitive bidding
requirement. RSA 171-A establishes Area Agencies as nonprofit corporations designated to serve a
geographic area established by rules adopted by the Department to provide services to developmentally
disabled persons in that area. Pursuant to RSA 171-A;18. 1., once designated, the Area Agency shall be
the primary recipient of funds provided by the Department for use in establishing, operating and
administering supports and services and coordinating these with existing services on behalf of persons
with developmental disabilities, in the area.

In accordance with RSA 171-A and RSA 126-C, the Area Agencies are responsible for
establishing, maintaining, implementing, and coordinating a comprehensive service delivery system for
individuals with developmental disabilities and acquired brain disorders. Approval of this Reqljest will
allow the ten (10) non-profit Area Agencies to provide developmental, acquired brain disorder, and early
supports and services to approximately 12,500 adults and children throughout the State. The Area
Agencies function as an integral part of the Organized Health Care Delivery System operated by the
Bureau of Developmental Services and approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
under the authority of three Medicaid funded Home and Community-Based Care Services waivers.

These ten (10) Area Agencies provide for the care, habilitation, treatment, and training of
developmentally disabled persons, as well as provide support for their families. Services include
community support / independent living, community participation and ernployment, family-centered early
supports, family support, in-home support, residences that may also provide community participation
services, residential, service coordination, services to persons with acquired brain disorders, and
participant directed and managed services.

These Agreements include funding that will be shared among the agencies to provide family
centered early supports and services, room and board, and community education assistance, of which
there is no maximum or minimum service volume guarantee. By including these services in the contracts,
as a shared source of funding, the Department is able to distribute funds throughout the year in a timely
manner, based on individual and agency needs. Family centered early supports and services
complement other services are delivered through agency and are. intended to provide additional training,
supports, and direct services to aid children and their families. Funding for room and board pay costs for
housing related expenses for those who receive residential services through the Area Agencies, in the
event that there are no other public and/or private resources available for this purpose. Funding for
community education assistance will provide for eligible Contractor staff and other Provider agency staff
within the region continuing education "assistance to pursue or further pursue an Associates, Bachelors,
Masters and/or Doctorate and/or a specific certiftcation that support the mission of the community
developmental sen/ices system. Funding for these sen/ices is based on statewide need, and will change
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throughout the year. This allows the Department to have flexibility in the allocation of funds to meet the
needs of the individuals served.

The Department contracts with four (4) agencies to provide specific services that support the
entire Organized Health Care Delivery System statewide. The Department has determined that
contracting to provide the following services statewide Is the most effective and efficient use of resources:

•  Community Bridges provides Systemic, Therapeutic Assessment, Respite, and Treatment
(START) statewide for individuals who may be in crisis. START is national program, for
which New Hampshire participates. START offers services in the community to strengthen

efficiencies and service outcomes for individuals with intellectual and developmental

disabilities and behavioral health needs.

•  Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County provides administrative
and financial support for the Council for Youths with Chronic Conditions pursuant to RSA
126-J. The Council for Youths with Chronic Conditions promotes the organized

assessment of the needs of youths with chronic conditions and their families, and serves
in an advisory capacity to the Departments of Health and Human Services, Education,
and Insurance. The Council for Youths with Chronic Conditions increases awareness in

the public and private sectors of the medical, social, and educational issues that may
Impact youths with chronic conditions and their families to provide support for youths to
remain in their own homes and communities.

•  Community Crossroads, Inc. provides statewide support for a Family Support Conference,
the People First program, and statewide training initiatives that support individuals with
development disabilities and acquired brain disorders, as well as their families.

•  Lakes Region Community Services Council provides support to the Designated Receiving
Facility for nursing services as outlined in He-M 1201, transportation, as requested,
business office administration, and case management support.

The Area Agencies work collaboratively with the Department on a variety of initiatives designed
to sustain a high quality system of services and supports for people with developmental disabilities,
including continuous quality improvement activities, safeguarding the rights of people involved in
sen/ices, and provision of ongoing staff training.

Pursuant to RSA 171-A and New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 505, each Area Agency
is designated by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. As part of this
designation, the Department conducts Governance Audits to ensure that Area Agencies are meeting
contract requirements. Re-designation includes a number of tools to assist the Department to measure
the performance of the Area Agencies. New Hampshire participates in the National Core Indicators, a
national effort that uses standard measures of performance in each participating state to assess the
outcomes of services provided to individuals and families. In addition, as part of compliance with the
Home and Community Based Waivers, the Department is required to conduct ongoing service reviews.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve these Requested Actions, approximately
12,500 individuals served through the area agencies will be without services necessary to maintain their
health, safety and welfare in accordance with RSA 171-A.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 17% Federal Funds from the Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative
Services, Department of Education, Special Education Grants for Infants and Toddlers. Catalog of
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Federal and Domestic Assistance #84.181A, Federal Award Identification Number H181A170127, and
83% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support these programs.

^spectfully submitted,

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparlnient of Ilcalth and Human Services' Mission is lo join communities and families
in providing op/x)rlunilies for cili:ens,lu oc/uVce health and inde/HUidcnce.



Financial Details

05-95-93-930010-7013 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL

SERV DIV OF. DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Area Agency of Greater Nashua (Vendor Code 155784-B001) P0«

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 93007013 $346,116

2021 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 93007013 $343,326

Subtotal $689,442

Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County (Vendor Code 177278-B002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $213,770

2021 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 93007013 $219,472

Subtotal $433,242

Communtty Bridges (Ver^dorCode 155658-8001) P0«

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total /Vnount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 93007013 $615,617

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $617,777

Subtotal $1,233,394

Community Crossroads. Inc. (Vendor Code 155293-8001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class TitJe Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $496,971

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $499,971

Subtotal $996,942

Developmental Serwces of Sullivan County (Vendor Code 167142-B001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $157,125

2021 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 93007013 $149,704

Subtotal $306,829

Lakes Region Community Services Council (Vendor Code 177251-8002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 93007013 $1,026,204

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $1,032,004

Subtotal $2,058,208

Monadnock Developmental Services (Vendor Code 177280-8002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $270,979

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $245,644

Subtotal $516,623
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Financial Details

Moore Center Services. Inc. (Vendor Code 154355-B001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class I Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $161,550

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $176,540

Subtotsf $358,090

Northern Human Services (Vendor-Code 177222-B004) PO#

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $246,476

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $244,924

Subtotal $491,400

One Sky Community Services (Vendor Code 155665-6001) PC#

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $671,921

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $667,811

Subtotal $1,339,732

Total Family Support Services $8,423,902

OS-96-93-930010-7014 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL

SERV DiV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. EARLY INVERVENTION (100% General Funds)

Area Agency of Greater Nashua (Vendor Code 155784-B001) P0«

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title . Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $575,750

2021 102-500731 '  Contracts for program services 93007014 $497,200

Subtotal $1,072,950

Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Stratford County (Vendor Code 177276-B002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Numtwr Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $202,750

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $197,048

Subtotal $399,798

Community Bridges ̂ endof Code 155658-8001 ] PO#

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $245,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program sen/ices 93007014 $244,500

- Subtotal $489,500

Community Crossroads. Inc. (Vendor Code 1S5293-B001 PO#

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Numtwr Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $704,500

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $701,500

Subtotal $1.406.000

Developmental Services of Sullivan County (Vendor Code 167142-B001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $69,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $74,700

Subtotal $143,700

Page 2 of S



Financial Details

Lakes Region Community Services Council (Vendor Code 177251-B002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 $60,250

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 $54,450

Subtotal $114,700

Monadnock Developmental Services (Vendor Code 177280-B002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Tide Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 $115,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 $112,500

Subtotal $227,500

Moore Center Services. Inc. (Vendor Code 154355-8001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amourtt

2020 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 93007014 $296,500

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 $299,850

Subtotal $596,350

Northern Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-8004) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class TitJe Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 $3,498

2021 , 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 $5,050

Subtotal $8,548

One Sky Community Services (Vendor Code 155666-8001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007014 $467,250

2021 . 102-500731 Contracts for oroqram services 93007014 $552,700

' Subtotal $1,019,950

Total Early Intervention $5,478,996

05-95-93-930010*7652 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEFT OP, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL
SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, INFANT - TODDLER PROGRAM PT-C (100% Federal Funds)

Area Agency of Greater Nashua (Vendor Code 155784-B001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 $218,800

2021 . 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 $300,140

Subtotal $518,940

Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County (Vendor Code 177278-B002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class TItJe Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 $109,400

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 $109,400

Subtotal $216,600

Community Bridges (Vendor Code 155658-BOOl) PO#

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 $190,740

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 $189,080

Subtotal $379,820

Community Crossroads. Inc. (Vendor Code 155293-B001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for prooram services 93007852 $254,642

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 93007852 $254,642

Subtotal $509,284
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Financial Details

Developmental Services of Sullivan County (Vendor Code 167142-B001) PO#

Rscal Year Class! Account Class Title Job Numtjer Total Amourtt

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $71,220

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $69,560

Subtotal $140,780

Lakes Region Community Services Council (Vendor Code 177251 -8002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $102,760

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $102,760

Subtotal $205,520

Monadnock Developmental Services (Vendor Code '177280-B002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $152,400

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $154,060

Subtotal $306,460

Moore Center Services. Inc. (Vendor Code 154355-B001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class / Accourrt Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $326,700

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $328,360

Subtotal $655,060

Northern Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-B004) PO#

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Numt)er Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $34,700

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $34,700

Subtotal $69,400

One Sky Community Services (Vendor Code 155666-B001) PO#

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $266,940

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007852 $185,600

Subtotal $452,540

Total Contract Part C $3,456,604

05-9S-93-930010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL

SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% General Funds)

Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County (Vendor Code 177278-B002) PO#

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93005947 $104,125

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93005947 $104,125

Subtotal $208,250

Total Price Specific to Vendor $17,567,752
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Financial Details

Funding Amounts Shared by Vendors as follows:

For Continuing Education

05-9&-93-930010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, KHS: DEVELOPMENTAL

SERV DIV OF. DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% General Funds)

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93025947 $74,890

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93025947 $74,690

Subtotal $149,780

For Family Centered Early Supports and Services (FCESS)

05-95-93.930010-7013 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL

SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Fiscal Year Clasis/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017013 $311,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017013 $311,000

Subtotal $622,000

05-95-93-930010-7852-502 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:

DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, INFANT • TODDLER PROGRAM PT-C (100% Federal
Funds)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 502-500891 Payments to Providers 93017852 $340,000

2021 502-500891 Payments to Providers 93017852 $340,000

Subtotal $680,000

For Room and Board

05-95-93-930010-71000000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES. HHS:

DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV. DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017100 $2,000,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017100 $2,000,000 .

Subtotal $4,000,000

05-95-93-930010-70160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS;

DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, ACQUIRED BRAIN DISORDER SERVIC (100%
General Funds)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017016 $500,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017016 $500,000

Subtotal $1,000,000

Total Price Shared

Total Price for All Vendors

$6,451,780

$24,019,532
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject; Dcvclopmentol and Acquired Drain Disorder Services (SS-2019-DDS-01 -DHVCL-) 0)

Notice: This agreement and all of its atlochmcnts shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Lxecutivc Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
he clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Crossroads, Inc.

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-893-1299 ex 317

1.6 Account Number
05-9S-93-930010-7t)l3.102-500731
05.<)5-9.t.9300l0-70l4-l02-500731

05-V5-93-9)00i0-7R52.102-500731

05-95-93-9300IO-7652-5O2-50OS91
05.9.':.93-9300l0-7l00-l02-5007il

05-95-93-930010-7016-102-500731

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

lor Sifinatu

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.4 Contractor Address

8 Commerce Drive

Atkinson NH 03811

1.7 Completion Dale

June 30,2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$9,364,006

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

"3 Acknowledgement: Stale of

. \2. Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

On vVtM. before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified
proven to W the person whoso name Is signed Ijj block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/hc executed ih}spK5p5icntjn
indicated in block.l.l? f

1.13.1 Signalmc'ofNoidry Public or Justice of the Peace

1.1.^.2 Name and Tit!-: of Notary or Justice of the Pea^c

encv Siunaiure 1.15 Name1.14 State Agency Signature

:-*S
I I j |

and Title of SfSfc Agency Signatory

Dale: iX'/c/ii/f l>-Sr/H-t ^
1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Admini.slration, Divisioti of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

e Attorney C^ijcral (Form, Substance and F.xecution) (ifapplicable) .

On: 6]D<^jc^r)l'n
1.18 Approval by ihfc Governor and Executive Council (fapplicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New lUmpshire. acting
through ihc agency identified in block I. I ("^Statc"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("'Contractor') to pej"forni,
and the Contractor shal l perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified atxl more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parlies
hereundcr, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Fvxccutive Council approve this Agreement as indicated In
block 1.18, unless no such approval Is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 I f the Contractor commences the Scrvice.s prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Ser/ices performed.
Contractor must complete all Ser\'ices by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereundcr. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the Slate be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated ftmds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Stale
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Noiwillistanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, e.xceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Cohtroctor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, .slate, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate.with, receive infomiation from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations, The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor'."; hooks, records and accounts for the purpose ot
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL,

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Service.s. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and sliall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block J.9,orhisor
her successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for tlic State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/KEMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event ofdcfault hcreunder
("F.vent of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of (his Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two ,
(2) days afier giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason ofany
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of'its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer program.^, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under ihi.s Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wTitten approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION, (n the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the dale of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACT OR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and i.s neither an agent nor

.  an employee of the State. Neither the Conlractornorany of its
ofTjcers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Noiwiihsianding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. Thi.s covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not les.s than S1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggreg«ite; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.l I. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed In the Stale of New
1 lampshire.
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14.3 TIk Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Ofl'icer
identified in block 1.9, or hi.s or her successor, a certificatc(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified In block 1.9, or his or her siicce.ssor, certificale(s) of
insuratKe for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificalc(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Bach ccrlificaie(s) of
irtsurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Ofilcer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than ihirfy (30) days prior svriitcn
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is In compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor .shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Slate of New I lampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresjtes
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
E.xeculivc Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19.CONS-rRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND I ERMS.

'l"his Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
law.s ofthe Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and.
efieci,

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as
to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this contract, the Contractor shall be identified as a sub-
recipient in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide developmental and acquired brain disorder
services in accordahce with New Hampshire Administrative Rules:

1.4.1. CHAPTER He-M 500 Developmental Services, including all PARTS as
applicable to developmental and acquired brain disorder services.

1.4.2. PARTS He-M 202 Rights Protection Procedures For Developmental
Services

s

1.4.3. PART He-M 310 Rights Of Persons Receiving Developmental Services
or Acquired Brain Disorder Services in the Community

1.4.4. PART He-M 1001 Certification Standards For Developmental Services
Community Residences

1.4.5. PART He-M 1201 Healthcare Coordination And Administration Of
Medications

1.5. The Contractor agrees to comply with the Department's policies and
procedures regarding development and acquired brain disorder services as
they are developed, implemented and amended.

1.6. The Contractor shall connect and assist all individuals with accessmg and
applying for other community resources/services and public programs that are
available or eligible to them such as but not limited to the Department and its
programs, Department of Education, Division of Vocational Rehabilitation,
local education agencies, and Developmental Disabilities Council.

SS-2020-BDS-01-DEVeL-10 Exhibit A Contractor Initials iQr
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New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

Exhibit A

1.7. The Contractor shall provide to the Department upon request documentation
that ensures each Contractor employee, and subcontractor who may have
direct contact with clients under this agreerhent. has undergone a Criminal
Background Check which demonstrates no convictions for the following
crimes:

1.7A. A felony of any individual or neglect, spousal abuse, any crime against
children, child pornography, rape, sexual assault, or homicide, but not
including other physical assault or battery.

1.7.2. A violent or sexually-related crime against a child or an adult which
shows that the person might be reasonably expected to pose a threat
to any individual.

1.7.3. A felony for physical assault, battery, or a drug-related offense, and that
felony conviction was committed within the past five (5) years in
accordance with 42 USC 671 (a)(20){A)(ii).

1.7.3.1. The Contractor shall provide the required documentation to
the Department prior to any such Contractor employee
commencing work, subject to Department approval.

1.8. The Contractor agrees to determine an individual's eligibility for and types of
developmental and acquired brain disorder services in Section 2.1 below in
accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-M 503, He-M 522.
andHe-M510.

1.9. The Contractor shall ensure that each Contractor employee, and
subcontractor who may have direct contact with clients or client information
under this agreement has received training in safeguarding confidential client
Information as required by state and federal law and regulation, including but
not limited to, for substance use disorder information regulated by 42 CFR Part
2 appropriate consents and notices of non-disclosure.

1.10. Fiscal Year is a period beginning July 1 and ending June 30.

1.11. Days in this Agreement shall mean calendar days.

1.12. Quarterly means the periods July 1 through September 30, October 1 through
December 31, January 1 through March 31 and April 1 through June 30.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services
2.1. The Contractor shall provide the developmental and acquired brain disorder

services as described in more detail in Exhibit A-1 and quantity in Exhibit A-2
as follows:

2.1.1. Community Support/Independent Living Services.

2.1.2. Community Participation Services and/or Employment Services.

2.1.3. Family-Centered Early Supports and Services.

2.1.4. Family Support Services.

2.1.5. In-Home Support Services.

2.1.6. Contractors who provide Residential Services and who may Provide
Community Participation Services.

2.1.7. Residential Services.

2.1.8. Service Coordination.

2.1.9. Services to Person with Acquired Brain Disorders.

2.1.10. Participant Directed Managed Services.

2.1.11. Room and Board for those Residential settings in which the Department
is providing Slate General Fund financial resources.

2.2. National Core Indicators (NCI)

2.2.1. For those individuals chosen to participate in the NCI. the Contractor
shall enter by the deadline given by the Department the individual's
demographic information into the Online Data Entry Survey Application
(ODESA). The Contractor shall work with the Department to assist the
scheduling of Interviews for NCI surveys in a timely basis.

2.2.2. For those individual for whom there is an unmet need, the agency will
respond to the corrective action request within 15 working days to
ensure the need has been met and document such actions in the
service coordination case notes. Actions may include but not limited to
ensuring someone's name is added to the waitlist to eventually secure
funds.

2.3. Supports Intensity Scale (SIS) Individual Service Agreements and
Individual Budget Proposals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

Exhibit A

2.3.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department's contracted SIS
interviewers as directed by the Department to facilitate the completion
of the SIS assessments for all individuals served under this Contract,
■regardless of payer sources, in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rule He-M 503.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall insure that the Contractor's staff/regional service
coordinators use the results of the SIS evaluations to conduct service
planning meetings and to create Individual Service Agreements for
each individual in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-M 503.

2.3.3. The Contractor shall insure that SIS are completed at a minimum every
five years for each person accessing waivered services.
2.3.3.1. The Contractor shall use the Individual Service Agreement

template in the Health Risk Screening Tool (HRST) in
Section 2.4 below to create Individual Services Agreements.

2.3.4. The Contractor shall use the Individual Service Agreement in Section
2.3.2 above to create Individual Budget Proposals in accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 503 for the estimated cost
of each individual's services defined in the Individual Service
Agreement in Section 2.3.2 above.
2.3.4.1. The Contractor shall use Individual Budget Templates

provided by the Department to create the Individual Budget
Proposals in Section 2.3.3 above.

2.3.4.2. The Contractor shall estimate costs for services in
accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M
503.

2.3.4.3. The Contractor shall obtain and enter all required information
from the Individual Budget Templates in Section 2.3.3.1. into
the Budget Tracking System (BTS) .for Department to
approve the individual's services and budgets.

2.3.4.4. The Contractor shall not provide services to individuals prior
to Department approval and understands the Department is
under no obligation to pay for such services started without
approval.

SS-2020-BDS-01-DEVEL-10
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

Exhibit A

2.4. Health Risk Screening Tool (HRST):

2.4.1. The Contractor shall use the HRST to screen an individual for medical
needs/concerns/issues to assist the individual in accessing needed
medical care in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-M 503.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall insure that appropriate staff:

2.4.2.1. Are trained on how to obtain and to enter the required
information into the HRST database.

2.4.2.2. Are trained in using the results of the screening.

2.5. Agreement with Local Community Mental Health Center

2.5.1. In an effort to coordinate services for those who are eligible for services
from both the Area Agency and Community Mental Health Center, the
Contractor shall develop a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with
the Community Mental Health Center for the region. At a minimum the
MOU shall address processes for the following:

2.5.1.1. Services for those dually eligible for both organizations, t

2.5.1.2. Transition plans for youth leaving children's services,

2.5.1.3. An Emerigency Department protocol for individual's dually
eligible,

2.5.1.4. Process for assessing individuals leaving New Hampshire
Hospital or the Secure Psychiatric Hospital.

2.5.1.5. An annual orientation for case management/intake staff of
both organizations, and

2.5.1.6. A plan for each person who receives dual case management
outlining the responsibilities of each organization.

2.6. Risk Management

2.6.1. The Contractor shall conduct risk assessments as outlined in He-M 503
and He-M 522.

2.7. Wait List Registry

2.7.1. The Contractor shall complete waitlist activities In accordance with He-
M 503, in NHLeads in Section 2.8 below, a database system, for
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Grain Disorder Services

Exhibit A

individuals who are currently on the waitlist and for those individuals
who will need funds during the next five fiscal years.

2.7.2. The Contractor shall obtain, enter, and update within thirty (30) days of
any change of the individual's status on the waitlist, the required
information into the Wait List Registry to document the need for funding
and services.

2.7.3. the Contractor shall rank when the individual is receiving Waitlist
Funding and remove an individual from the Walt List Registry within 5
days of receiving an approval from the Department for an allocation of
funding for the Individual's Services Budget.

2.7.4. The Contractor shall enter In the Wait List Registry the actual start date
for the individuals approved services within. 5 days of the start of
services. If there is a delay in serviceis (when services may not start on
the anticipated start date), the Contractor shall indicate the reason for
delay to the Department.

2.7.5. The Contractor shall provide, and participate in any tracking and/or
monitoring of use of Wait List dollars, as required by the Department.

2.8. Out of State Placements;

2.8.1. In an effort to comply with the requirements in RSA 171-A:18. the
primary responsibility of the area agency shall be to plan, establish, and
maintain a comprehensive service delivery system for individuals who
are residing in the area, the Contractor shall seek approval from the
■Department prior to agreeing to and arranging for an out of state
placement. Shared Living arrangements in border towns are exempt
from this requirement, if they are certified through the Department.

2.9. Employment Data System (EDS)

2.9.1. The Contractor agrees to enter all the required data into EDS, as
defined by EDS and the Department, for all individuals served under
this Agreement and who are employed,

2.9.2. The Contractor shall obtain and enter or update ail of the required
information into EDS'such as, but not limited to: job-end-date, any
changes In hours worked or wages earned.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

Exhibit A

2.9.3. The Contractor shall make updates in the EDS by 9/30. 12/31, 3/31,
6/30 for the previous quarter's activities to generate the regional and
statewide employment reports.

2.10. NHLeads

2.10.1. The Contractor will use NHLeads to record service activity for
individuals over the age of three as follows:

2.10.1.1. Complete intake processing:

2.10.1.2. Determine eligibility for and types of services; and

2.10.1.3. Capture dates and types of services provided to individuals
in the Service Capture/Biljing section.

2.10.2. The Contractor agrees to provide accurate information and not to
duplicate individuals in NHLeads.

2.10.3. The Contractor shall make to at least a single service entry per month
to show that an individual was served during that month when services

are non-billable. Non-billable service delivery data may also be
uploaded to NHLeads as an alternative to entering the records directly
in the Service Capture/Billing calendar.

2.11. No Wrong Door System

2.11.1. The Contractor agrees to being a No Wrong Door (NWD) partner as it
relates to the Area Agency to create linkages for individuals who seek
services from them and require intake, evaluation, and assessment as
outlined in RSA 171-A:2. 1-b. and 171-A:6

2.11.2. The Contractor shall provide, at minimum the following consistent with
the Federal Key Elements of a NWD System of Access Guidelines.

2.11.3. The Contractor shall participate as Partner under the NHCarePath
model by operating as eligibility and referral partner for individuals who
may require or may benefit from community long term supports and
services (LTSS).

2.11.4. The Contractor shall ensure that individuals connect to LTSS options
that may or will cover out of pocket costs through other community
resources in close coordination with other NHCarePath Partners
including but not limited to ServlceLInk, Area Agencies, and DHHS
Division of Economic and Housing Stability
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

Exhibit A

2.11.5. The Contractor will participate In up to three (3) State and up to four (4)
Regional meetings for NHCarePalh.

2.11.6. The Contractor shall provide case management functions involving
assessments, referral and linkage to needed Long Term Services and
Supports (LTSS) through a core standardized assessment process and
through monitoring and ensuring the linkage of referrals between
agencies, employing a warm hand-off of individuals from one agency to
another when necessary.

2.11.7. The Contractor shall support individuals and follow standardized
guidelines established by the Department for providing preliminary
screening (Level-One Screening), referrals, and functional
assessments for LTTS.

2.11.8. The Contractor shall utilize and distribute NHCarePath outreach,

education and awareness materials.

2.12. Complaint Investigation

2.12.1. The Contractor shall comply with all requirements of He-M 202, Rights
Protection Procedures for Developmental Services.

2.12.2. The Contractor shall reimburse the Department for all expenses
incurred when the Department conducts and completes a complaint
investigation for an individual being served under this contract.

2.12.3. The Contractor shall pay the Department within 30 days from the date
the Department sends notice to the Contractor for the amount of
expenses.

2.12.4. The Contractor shall keep documentation of compliance and follow
through with the recommendations that are made from both founded
and unfounded reports.

2.13. CMS Requirements Compliance and Corrective Action Plan

2.13.1. The Contractor agrees to work with the Department towards
compliance with 42 CFR 431.301 (c)(1){vi).

1

2.14. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

2.14.1, In order to enable the Department to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal
integrity, the Contractor agrees to submit to the Department monthly,
the Balance Sheet. Profit and Loss Statement, and Cash Flow
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Statement for the Contractor and all related parties that are under the

Parent Corporation of the developmental services provider
organization. The Profit and Loss Statement shall include a budget
column allowing for budget to actual analysis. These statements shall
be individualized by providers, as well as a consolidated (combined)
statement that includes all subsidiary organizations. Statements shall
be submitted within thirty (30) calendar days after each month end.

2.14.2. The Contractor agrees to financial performance standards as follows:

2.14.2.1. Days of Cash on Hand

a. Definition: The days'^of operating expenses that
can be covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

b. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short term
investments divided by total operating
expenditures, less depreciation/amortization and
in-kind plus principal payments on debt divided by
days in the reporting period. The short-term
investments as used above must mature within

three (3) months and should not include common
stock.

c. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have

enough cash and cash equivalents to cover
expenditures for a minimum of thirty (30) calendar
days with no variance allowed. ^

2.14.2.2. Current Ratio

a. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total
current assets available to cover the cost of current

liabilities.

b. Formula: Total current assets divided by total

current liabilities.

c. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall

maintain a minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10%

variance allowed.

2.14.2.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio

SS-2020-BDS-01-DEVEL-10 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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a. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's

ability to cover the cost of their current portion of
their long-term debt.

b. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to

date debt service.

c. Formula: Net Income plus
Depreciation/Amortization Expense plus Interest

Expense divided by year to date debt service
(principal and interest) over the next twelve (12)
months.

d. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial

Statements Identifying current portion of long-term
debt'payments (principal and interest).

e. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall

maintain a minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no

variance allowed.

2.14.2.4. Net Assets to Total Assets

a. Rationale: This ratio is an Indication of the

Contractor's ability to cover their liabilities.
b. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets

to total assets.

c. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total

liabilities) divided by total assets.

d. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

e. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall

maintain a minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20%

. variance allowed.

2.14.3. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

2.14.3.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the
standard regarding Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive
months; or

2.14.3.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal
Integrity standards for one (1) consecutive month.

SS-2020-BDS-01-DEVEL-10 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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2.14.3.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with
Department staff to explain the reasons that the Contractor
has not met the standards.

2.14.3.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a
comprehensive corrective action plan within thirty (30)
calendar days of notification that Section 2.16.3.1 and

2.16.3.2 has not been met. The Contractor shall update the

corrective action plan at least every thirty (30) calendar days
until compliance is achieved.

2.14.3.5. The Department may request additional information to
assure continued access to services. The Contractor shall

provide requested information in a timeframe agreed upon by
both parties.

2.14.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email
within twenty-four (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of
any actual or likely litigation, investigation, complaint, claim, or
transaction that may reasonably be considered to have a material

.  financial impact on and/or materially impact or impair the ability of the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement with DHHS.

2.14.5. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow
Statement, and all other financial reports shall be based on the accrual

method of accounting and include the Contractor's total revenues and
expenditures whether or not generated by or resulting from funds
provided pursuant to this Agreement. These reports are due within
thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each month.

2.14.6. The Contractor shall provide their Revenue and Expense Budget
(Budget Form A) for the upcoming fiscal year no later than the date
defined by the Department in the annual contracting schedule. The
Department shall withhold payment for from the Contractor for not
providing the Budget Form A by the due date.

2.14.7. The Contractor shall complete the Revenue and Expense Budget on

the Department supplied form (Budget Form A or any revision of this
form), which shall include but not be limited to, all the Contractors cost
centers.. If the Contractor subcontracts with local agencies, each

agency shall be displayed with a separate cost center.
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2.14.8. The Contractor shall provide to the Department quarterly Revenue and
Expense Reports (Budget Form A), within thirty (30) calendar days after
the end of each quarter

2.14.9. Contractors Request for Extension of Financial Filing Deadlines.

2.14.9;i. If the contractor is unable to submit within 30 days, then the
contractor shall submit a request for an extension of the filing

deadline as follows;

2.14.9.1.1. Requests shall be made in writing;

2.14.9.1.2. Requests shall be sent to the director or

designee;

,  2.14.9.1.3. Requests shall be received no later than 20

days prior to the filing deadline; and

2.14.9.1.4. Requests shall include the following:

2.14.9.1.4.1. Contact information:

2.14.9.1.4.2. Reason for requesting the

extension; and

2.14.9.1.4.3. New requested deadline.

2.14.9.2. The request for extension will be granted if there are
unforeseen situations that are beyond the Area Agencies and
their subcontractors control that prevent them from preparing

the facilities fiscal information.
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Scope of Services: Detailed Service Descriptions

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services In Exhibit A-1
1.1.The Contractor shall have and maintain the capacity (staffing and resources) to

serve the projected number of unduplicated individuals and projected number of
service units for each service in accordance with Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit A-2, upon
the Contract's effective date.

1.1.1. The number of unduplicated individuals is listed under the column

titled "Individuals" in Exhibit A-2.

1.1.2. The type of unit in "Service Units'! in Exhibit A-2 is defined in the

Medicaid billing system and in the Medicaid Home and Community
Based Waivers

1.2.The Contractor shall serve the projected number of individuals in Exhibit A-1 and
A-2 upon the Contract's effective date and throughout the contract period.

1.3.The Contractor shall report to the Department when an individual is no longer
being served under this Contract.

1.3.1. The Contractor shall report to the Department, within five (5) days of
the individuals' last day of services. The Contractor shall include in

said report:

1.3.1.1. Name of the individual,

1.3.1.2. Last date of services for the individual.

1.3.1.3. Services the individual received and the utilization of

services the individual received for each service.

1.3.1.4. Explanation for the individual no longer receiving
services.

1.4. The Contractor agrees that failure to be ready to serve individuals in accordance
with Section 1.1 above shall constitute grounds for a reduction in the price
limitation, Block 1.8 of the General Provisions, Form P-37 of this Agreement, oral
the discretion of the State, shall constitute an event of default.

1.5.The Contractor hereby agrees that should the aggregate number of units of
service decrease by ten (10) percent of the aggregate number of units of service
contained in Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit A-2 for each service, then the Slate, at its

SS-2020-2021 BDS-01-DEVEL-10 Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials&
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discretion, may reduce the price limitation as set forth in Paragraph 1.8 of the

General Provisions, Form P-37. of this Agreement.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide developmental and acquired brain disorder services

for Region 10 defined as the cities and towns in New Hampshire Administrative

Rule He-M 505.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide developmental and acquired brain disorder services

that include basic Activities of Daily Living (ADL) services and supports to clients

in the home as would be expected within a home environment.

1.7.1. The Contractor shall provide developmental and acquired brain-

disorder services as needed for Individuals in order to enhance their

optimal functioning and independence in basic skills.

1.7.2. The Contractor shall provide developmental and acquired brain

disorder services that strive to enhance and facilitate each

individual's opportunity for meaningful participation In the community
with neighbors, merchants, friends, and other non-paid members of

the community.

1.8.The Contractor will provide fire drills and training, in accordance with the

Administrative Rule governing the program for residents in order to continually

ensure that residents are able to promptly evacuate the home, the facility where

services are provided, and a residential home in the event of a fire or other

•  emergency.

2. Community Supports/Independent Living Services
2.1.The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this

agreement, it will provide community support/independent living services in

accordance with the service description(s) cited below and further detailed and

quantified in Exhibit A-2 of this agreement and in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rule He-M 517, "Medicaid-Covered Home and Community-Based
Care Services for Persons with Developmental Disabilities and Acquired Brain
Disorders."

3. Community Participation Services and/or Employment Services
3.1.The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this

agreement, it will provide community participation services in accordance with the
service description(s) cited below and further detailed and quantified in Exhibit A-

2 of this agreement, and in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rules
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He-M 507, "Community Participation Services," and/or He-M 518, "Employment

Services."

4. Family Centered Early Supports and Services
4.1.The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this

agreement, Family-Centered Early Supports and Services (FCESS) will be

provided in accordance with the service description(s) cited below and in
compliance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 510, ''Family-

Centered Early Supports Services".

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees to provide FCESS services to all children

determined to be eligible on an annual basis (defined as the period

of July 1 through June 30); the anticipated number to be served is in

the table below;

Total Number of Children

anticipated In SFY 2020
Total Number of Children

anticipated in SFY 2021

520 520

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure that the FCESS scope of services for each child and

their family shall be individualized, family centered, and determined by the

Individualized Family Support Plan (IFSP) team.

4.3. The Contractor agrees to provide FCESS services in compliance with the Office

of Special Education Programs (OSEP) compliance indicators.

4.4.The Contractor agrees to provide FCESS services in natural environments as
defined by OSEP and He-M 510.

4.5. The Contractor shall collect and enter all required client/individual information into

NHLeads and the FCESS Case Management System and:

4.5.1. Ensure that all FCESS data is maintained accurately, completely,

and Is entered into NHLeads and the Case Management System In

a timely manner, and

4.5.2. Provide to the Department FCESS data as requested and by the date

determined by the Department.

4.6.The Contractor shall collect, internally and from external vendors/providers, and

report, quarterly to the Department, the amount of private insurance submitted for

reimbursement; the amount private insurance paid for services; and demonstrate

that the insurance reimbursement was used to reduce the cost of FCESS services

provided. The report template will be provided by the department.
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4.7. The Contractor will work with other external professionals, as needed, to meet the
needs, as identified in the IFSP in Section 4.2, of children enrolled in FCESS and

their families.

4.8. The Contractor's staff shall comply with current professional development
standards as defined by the Department's monitoring process, written guidance,
and He-M 510 and as follows:

4.8.1. All new staff will complete the Welcome to FCESS (WESS)
orientation, the Diversity and Cultural Competence training, and the
Child Outcome Summary (COS) training within one (1) year of their
hire date.

4.8.2. All staff shall have current individualized professional development

plans updated at least annually.

4.8.3. All staff shall have training at least annually in procedural safeguards.

4.8.4. All staff shall maintain licensure or certification as appropriate for
their professional discipline.

4.8.5. FCESS training funds shall be equitably distributed across all

programs to assure that FCESS Service Coordinators and Service

Providers are up to date on best and evidence-informed practices.
Utilization of funds will be verified as a part of annual FCESS
program monitoring.

4.9.The Contractor shall provide FCESS services in a timely manner in accordance
with He-M 510 and as follows:

4.9.1. Forty-five (45) day timeline between receipt of referral and signed
IFSP;

4.9.2. Services start no later than thirty (30) days from the IFSP start date;
and

4.9.3. Consultant services start no later than thirty (30) days from the date

services are determined by the IFSP team.

4.10. The Contractor shall ensure that FCESS programs maintain high levels of
.quality and compliance in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule

He-M 510, OSEP, and the federal Individuals with Disabilities Educational Act

(IDEA).
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4.11. The Contractor and Contractor's staff shall comply with all FCESS current

guidance documents.

4.12. FCESS Supplemental Services Funding

4.12.1. The Contractor shall identify needed support services for children

who have a signed IFSP in place and who have identified conditions
and/or needs that are expectedTo require a level of service provision

that is greater than a typical FCESS service array; in accordance

with the Supplemental Funding Guidance provided by the

Department.

4.12.2. The Contractor shall identify the external providers for these needed

services, defined as direct FCESS services for the child and their

family beyond what is typical and which address the individual needs

as identified in the child's IFSP and is supported by the child's

assessment.

4.12.3. The Contractor shall complete and submit a FCESS Supplemental

Funding proposal using the Department approved form(s) and in

accordance with the -Guidance that defines the allowable services

and funding limits for each proposal.

4.12.4. The Contractor agrees that the Department shall determine the

Contractor's allocation of the Statewide funding for FCESS

Supplemental Funding under section 4.12 through ongoing review

and approval of individual FCESS Supplemental Funding Proposal's,

as they are submitted.

4.12.5. The Contractor shall submit invoices for approved- FCESS

Supplemental Funding Proposals in accordance with the Department

provided Guidance.

4.12.6. The Contractor is responsible for monitoring the implementation of

the FCESS Supplemental Funding Proposal plans, as approved,

ensuring fiscal responsibility.

5. Family Support Services
5.1.The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this

agreement, it will provide family support services in accordance with the service

description(s) cited below and In accordance with New Hampshire Administrative

Rules He-M 519, "Family Support Services," and He-M 513, "Respite Services."
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5.1.1. The Contractor agrees to provide Famiiy Support Services up to the
number of number of families, services, and units according to the
table below.

Numtier of Number of Number of Number of Total

Unduplicated Unduplicated Unduplicated Unduplicated Respite
Families to Families Families Families Units
be Served Provided with Provided with Provided with

Respite Only Non-Respite Both Types of
Only (Family Family
Supports) Supports

420 0 233 187 117,869

5.1.2. The Contractor will

Practice as identified

5.1.2.1.

5.1.2.2.

5.1.2.3.

5.1.2.4.

5.1.2.5.

5.1.2.6.

5.1.2.7.

5.1.2.8.

5.1.2.9.

by Family Support America

Staff and families work together in relationships based
on equality and respect.

Staff enhances families' capacity to support the growth
and development of all family members - adults, youth,
and children.

Families are resources to their own members, to other

families, to programs, and to communities,

Programs affirm and strengthen families' cultural,
racial, and linguistic identities and enhance their ability
to function in a multicultural society.

Programs are embedded in their communities and

contribute to the community-building process.

Programs advocate with families for services and

systems that are fair, responsive, and accountable to

the families served.

Practitioners work with families to mobilize formal and

informal resources to support family development.

Programs are flexible and continually responsive to
emerging family and community issues.

Principles of family support are modeled in all program
activities, including planning, governance, and
administration.

SS-2020-2021 BDS-01-DEVEL-10

Community Crossroads, Inc.

Exhibit A-1

Page 6 of 11

Contractor Initial

Date_^



New Hampshire Departrrent of Health and Human Services
Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

Exhibit A-1

5.1.3. The Contractor will collaborate with and promote networking and
community building with other systems of family support including,
but not limited to Partners in Health, Special Medical Services Care

Coordination, and with other community agencies in the region.

. 5.1.4. The Contractor who provides Respite Care under Family Residence
services in Section 7 shall be accountable for the number of families

who receive respite services under Section 7 Family Residence

5.2. The Contractor shall work with the Regional Family Support Council in accordance

with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 519 for the purposes of improving
supports and services for individuals receiving developmental and acquired brain

disorder services.

5.2.1. The Contractor shall be responsible for providing the Regional
Family Support Council with funding from this Contract for the

purposes of providing flexible funding for services and support for the

Individuals and their families in accordance with New Hampshire

Administrative Rule He-M 519. ,

6. In-Home Support Services
6.1. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this

agreement, it will provide in-home support services in accordance with service

descriplion(s) cited below, and further detailed and quantified in Exhibit A-2 of this

agreement, and In accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M
524, "In-Home Supports."

6.2.The Contractor shall provide assistance and resources to individuals with

developmental disabilities and their families In order to improve and maintain the

Individuals' opportunities and experiences in living, communicating, socializing,
recreating, personal growth, and safety and health.

6.3. The Contractor will be responsible to ensure that individuals whose services are

funded through the In-home support services category will have full freedom and
control in choosing their own provider(s) for each and every aspect of their
services.

7. Contractors who provide Residential services and who may Provide
Community Participation Services
7,1.The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this

agreement, it will provide Residential and Community Participation Services in
accordance with the service description(s) cited below and further detailed and
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quantified in Exhibit A-2 of this agreement, and in accordance with He-M 1001,
"Certification Standards for Community Residences," or He-M 521, "Certification
of Residential Services or Combined Residential and Day Services Provided in
the Family Home."

8. Residential Services
8.1. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this

agreement, it will provide residential services in accordance with the service

description(s) cited below and further detailed and quantified in Exhibit A-2 of this
agreement, and in accordance with He-M 1001, "Certification Standards for

Community Residences" or He-M 521, "Certification of Residential Services or
Combined Residential and Day Services provided in the Family Home."

9. Service Coordination

9.1 .The Contractor agrees to employ 15 Service Coordinators who will be responsible
for accessing and coordinating services to a minimum of 403 individuals with

developmental disabilities and acquired brain disorders. The Contractor further

agrees to employ 4 Supervisor(s) of Service Coordination who will be responsible
for assuring adherence to the duties and responsibilities of the Service

Coordinators as specified in He-M 503, "Eligibility .and the Process of Providing
Services."

9.2. The Contractor shall ensure that the Supervisor(s) of Service Coordination will
also be responsible for accessing and coordinating services to a minimum of 25
individuals with developmental disabilities.

9.3. The Contractor agrees that documentation of service coordination services shall

adhere to the requirements found in He-M 503, "Eligibility and the Process of
Providing Services," and in He-M 517, "Medicaid-Covered Home and Community-
Based Care Services for Persons with Developmental Disabilities and Acquired
Brain Disorders."

9.4.The Contractor's Service Coordinator shall assure that all applications for public
assistance and Medicaid are filed in a timely fashion and, to the extent possible,
at least one hundred and twenty (120) days prior to final placement.

9.5. The Contractor agrees to ensure supervision of the Service Coordinator(s) on a
regular and frequent basis and to lake such steps as may be necessary to ensure
that the Service Coordinator(s) is/are fulfilling his/her duties and responsibilities in
a professional and lawful manner consistent with State standards and in a manner

that meets the needs of the individuals being served.
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9.6.The Contractor agrees to ensure supervision of expenditures from the $4000 in
Client Services Funds to cover gaps of services not otherwise covered and to

ensure that the Service Coordinator(s) has/have accessed all other available

sources of public funds, Slate Plan (if applicable) and, when appropriate, the
individual's or parent's (s') own resources prior to expenditure of Client Services
Funds.

9.6.1. , The Contractor, virhere appropriate, shall have written authorizations
that document those other sources of funds have been investigated
•thoroughly prior to expenditure of Client Services Funds.

9.7. The Contractor shall ensure that the Service Coordinator(s) are supervised by
and report directly to the Service Coordinator Supervisor.

9.8.The Contractor agrees that service coordination services will be available as

needed on a 24-hour basis, 365 days per year.

10. Services to Persons with Acquired Brain Disorders
10.1. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this

agreement, It will provide services to persons with acquired brain disorders in

residences in accordance with the service description(s) cited below and further
detailed and quantified iri Exhibit A-2 of this agreement, and in accordance with
He-M 522, "Services to Persons with Acquired Brain Disorders."

11. Participant Directed and Managed Services
11.1. The Contractor'hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this

agreement, it will provide consolidated developmental services in accordance with

services descript(on(s) cited below and further detailed and quantified in Exhibit
A-2 of this agreement, and in accordance with He-M 525, "Participant Directed
and Managed Services."

11.2. The Contractor shall provide assistance and resources to individuals with

developmental disabilities and their families in order to improve and maintain the
individuals' opportunities and experiences in living, working, socializing,
recreating, and personal growth, safety and health.

11.3. The Contractor will ensure that consumers whose services are funded through
the consolidated developmental services category will have full freedom and
control in choosing their own provider(s) for each and every aspect of their
services.
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11.4. The Contractor will communicate in writing to individuals and their families who

utilize PDMS that any unused funds may be returned to the Department to

manage or to use locally to meet other regional unmet service needs.

12. Room and Board for all Residential Services provided under this
Agreement.

12.1. The Contractor shall provide Individuals with room and board, as sleeping
accommodations and meals, for individuals living In Staffed Residences, in

accordance with the applicable New Hampshire Administrative rule for each of the

residential services in this Agreement.

12.2. The Contractor shall provide for Department approval a spreadsheet that

requests services and amount of funding for all clients in the region by slate fiscal
year.

12.3. The Contractor shall request in writing with an updated spreadsheet for
Department approval changes to the approved request in Section 12.2 above,

within fourteen days of knowing of such change.

12.4. The Contractor is required to seek reimbursement from the individual's other

public and private payer sources as well as other community resources for room
and board before seeking non-Medicaid reimbursement from the Department,
under this Agreement, on a Department provided form.

13. Continuing Education Assistance
13.1. The Contractor will provide for eligible Contractor staff and other Provider

agency staff within the region continuing education assistance to pursue or further

purse an Associates, Bachelors, Masters and/or Doctorate and/or a specific
certification that support the mission of the community developmental services
system.

13.2. The Contractor must comply with the Department guidelines to determine
eligibility and other requirements governing the continuing education assistance
program.

14. Statewide Support:
14.1. The Contractor it will provide statewide assistance and;

14.1.1. Support to the Family Support Conference by providing a staff
person to act as the Coordinator of the Conference In concert with

the Family Support Conference Committee:

14.1.2. Support to People First, by serving as the Fiscal Agent;.
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14.1.3. Coordination and support of Statewide Training Initiatives; and

14.1.4. Coordiriation and support of Part C Training Initiatives.

14.2. The Contractor shall provide for Department approval a work plan for each of
the activities in Section 14.1.1 through 14.1.4 within thirty (30) days of the contract
effective date. The Contractor shall include in the work plan the following:

^  14.2.1. Activities to be completed

14.2.2. Date the activities are to be completed.

14.2.3. Who will complete the activities.

14.3. The Contractor shall report quarterly on each work plan in Section 14.2 above
and provide a progress report of activities completed, activities to be

completed and foreseen barriers and recommended solutions to handle those

barriers.
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Exhibit A-2 Community Crossroads

Community

Support/Independent Living

Services

In Home Support Services

Residences Which May Also

Provide Community

Participation Services

Residential Services

Services to Persons With

Acquired Brain Disorders

Participant Directed and

Managed Services

Community Support Services

Day

SEP

In Home Supports

Day

Residential

Residential

Day

Residential

Consolidated Services

Consolidated Services

22

149

17

30

69

90

83

8

14

1

70

52,959

634,623

31,183

360

261.816

26,672

27,203

26.025

4,751

12

875
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Developmental and Acquired Brain Disorder Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block, 1.8 of the
General Provisions of this Agreement, Form P-37. and in accordance with Sections 3, 4 and 5 below
for the sen/ices provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services and Exhibit A-1
Scope of Services: Detailed Service Descriptions.

1.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, any.
change in the price limitation shall be made by written amendment signed by both parties
and may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and Executive Council.

Z This contract is funded with funds from:

2.1. State of New Hampshire General Funds

2.2. The United States Department of Education. Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative
Services, Special Education Grants for Infants and Toddlers, Catalog for Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) # 84.181 A. These Funds support the Part C activities in Exhibit A-1 under the Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).

2.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements.

3. Payment for Regional Family Support Council

3.1. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement from , the Department on quarterly basis on a
Department approved invoice with the date, and type of services and supports provided to
individuals and their families in accordance with Exhibit A-1 Scope of Services: Detailed Service
Descriptions, Sections 5.2 and 5.2.1.

3.2. Promptly after the effective date of this Agreement, the Department may make an Initial payment
to the Contractor, of an amount determined by the Department, necessary to initiate family
support council activities to support families in accordance with Exhibit A-1 Scope of Services:
Detailed Service Descriptions, Sections 5.2 and 5.2.1.

3.3. In no event shall the total of initial and/or monthly payments exceed the maximum price of
S72.851.

4. Payment for Regional Family-Centered Early Supports and Services (FCESS) Training

4.1. FCESS training funds shall be equitably distributed across all programs to assure that FCESS
Service Coordinators and Service Providers are up to date on best arid evidence-informed
practices in accordance with Exhibit A-1 Scope of Services: Detailed Service Descriptions,
Sections 4 and 4.8.5.

4.2. Utilization of funds will be verified as a part of annual FCESS program monitoring.

4.3. Promptly after the effective dale of this Agreement, the Department may make an initial payment
^  to the Contractor, of an amount determined by the Department, necessary to initiate FCESS
Community Crossroads, Inc.
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training.

4.4. In no event shall the total of initial and/or monthly payments exceed the maximum price of $3000.

5. Payment for Room and Board Expenses for individuals who receive Residential Services

5.1. The Contractor will seek non-Medicatd reimbursement from the Department for room and board
provided to Individuals who receive residential services as follows:

5.1.1. Based on approved expenses in accordance v/ith Exhibit A-1 Scope of Services: Detailed
Service Descriptions, Section 12. and

5.1.2. Only for the amount of fixed room and board expenses allocated to the individual whose
residential services are provided in accordance with Exhibit A Scope of Services, Section
2. The allocation Is based on dividing total fixed room and board expenses by all
Individuals/residents residing In the same residential setting. Fixed costs are costs
associated with the residential setting that will not change whether or not an individual
resides In the residential setting; and

5.1.3. Only for the portion of the approved expense not reimbursed by an individual's other public
and private funding sources and community funding resources.

5.2. The Contractor agrees the Department will only assist with room and board upori the availability
of funding.

5.3. The Contractor shall invoice the Department monthly using a Department approved form.

. 5.4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the IC^ day following the end of the month to the
Finance/Prior Authorization Unit of the Bureau of Developmental Services.

5.5. This Agreement is one of ten other Agreements vflth Contractors that will provide room and board
for individuals who have developmental and acquired brain disorders and who receive residential
services. No maximum or minimum residential service volume is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
total price for room and board among all ten Agreements is $4,000,000 for Developmental
Disabilities room & board (DD) & $1,000,000 for Acquired Brain Disorder room and board (ABD)
which has been included Block 1.8 Price Limitation of the General Provisions^ P-37.

6. Payment for Famlty Centered Earjy Supports and Services Supplemental Services funding

6.1. The Contractor will seek reimbursement from the Department for Family Centered Early Supports
and Services supplemental services based on approved expenses defined in Exhibit A-1 Section
4.12.

6.2. The Contractor shall submit a monthly invoice in accordance with the Department guidelines.

6.3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the 10th day following the end of the month to the
Financial Manager of the Bureau of Developmental Services.

6.4. This Agreement is one of ten other Agreements with Vendors that will provide Family Centered

Community Crossroads, Inc.
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Early Supports and Services supplemental services. No maximum or minimum service volume

Is guaranteed. Accordingly, the total price for Family Centered Early Supports and Services
Supplemental services among alt ten Agreements is S651.000 ($340,000 from Part 0 and
$311,000 from Family Support) which has been included Block 1.8 Price Limitation of the General
Provisions. P-37.

7. Payment for Continuing Education Assistance

7.1. The Contractor will seek reimbursement from the Department for Continuing Education in
accordance with the Department guidelines and after the Contractor or Provider agency staff
have completed the course with a grade C or better for Associate or Bachelor degrees or a grade
B or better for a Masters or Doctorate Degree or certificate program.

7.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in accordance with the Department guidelines as specified
in Exhibit A-1, Section 13 to the Financial Manager of the Bureau of Developmental Services.

7.3. This Agreement is one of ten other Agreements with Vendors that will provide Continuing
Education funding. No maximum or minimum service volume is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
total price for Continuing Education funding among all ten Agreements is $74,890 which has
Ijeen included Block 1.8 Price Limitation of the General Provisions, P-37.

8. Payment Methodology for Services that are not paid by Medicaid and not for services In
Sections 3 through 7 above

8.1. Payment to the Contractor may be made monthly and shall be made no later than a quarterly
basis subject to the following conditions:

8.1.1. Promptly after the effective date of this Agreement, the Department may make an initial
payment to the Contractor of an amount determined by the Department necessary to
initiate services. ^

8.1.2. After the initial payment in Section 8.1.1 above, the Department shall make payments to
the Contractor of either pro rata portions of the balance of the maximum price limitation
or, based upon documented cash needs as identified in the Contractor's Budget Form A
submitted by the Contractor and in the Department's Budget Tracking System, or such
other amounts as the Department determines necessary to maintain services.

8.1.2.1. In no event shall the total of initial and monthly payments exceed the maximum
price limitation in subparagraph 1.8 of the General Provisions of this Agreement.

8.1.2.2. The Department may adjust payments for services not being provided and for
increased Medicaid revenue.

8.1.2.3. The State may withhold, in whole or in part, any contract payment for the ensuing
contract period until the Contractor submits programmatic and financial reports
identified in Exhibit A to the State's satisfaction. Summary of Revenues and
Expenditures and Balance Sheet reports shall be based on the accrual method of

Community Crossroads, Inc.
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accounting and include the Contractor's total revenue and expenditures, whether
or not generated by, or resulting from. State funding.

8.1.2.4. The State may withhold, In whole or in part, any contract payment for the ensuing
contract period until the Contractor submits, to the State's satisfaction, a plan of
action to correct material findings noted in a Slate ftnanclal review, In Exhibit A,
Section 2.15.

8.1.2.5. The State may withhold. In whole or In part, any contract payment for the ensuing
contract period If routine State monitoring, a Quality Assurance survey, a program
certification review, or State financial reviews find corrective actions for previous
site surveys or financial reviews have not been implemented in accordance with
the Contractor's Corrective Action Plan(s) or to the State's satisfaction.

8.1.2.6. The Contractor shall submit to the Department, within the timelines established by
v  the Department, any and all reports required by the Department on State funded

or Medlcaid funded clients, including program volume and program outcome data,
client demographic data, client funding data, client clinical data, needs data,
program plan data, and client activity data in accordance with Paragraph 9 of the
General Provisions of this Agreement and In a manner and form acceptable to the
Department.

8.1.2.7. The Department reserves the right withhold three (3) percent of the total Price
Limitation, Block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this Agreement. Form P-37. until
the Contractor submits the final Summary of Revenues and Expenditures,
statistical reports, balance sheet reports, and program reports .on the forms
required by the Stale.

8.1.2.8. Contractor will have ninety (90) days from the end of the contract period to submit
final Invoices for payment to the Department. Any adjustments made after sixty
(60) days from the end of the contract period will need to be accompanied by
supporting documentation.

8.1.2.9. The Contractor shall maintain and provide as requested by the Department all
documentation to support the amount of funding received by the Department in
providing for services under this Agreement.

9. Revenue and Expense Budget (Budget Form A), Exhibit A Section 2.15.6 through 2.15.8.

9.1. The Contractor agrees as follows: any expenditure not In accordance with budgeted amounts
shall be reported to the State In the Summary of Revenues and Expenditures report for that
time period. Any expenditure that exceeds the approved budgets shall be solely the financial
transfer responsibility of the Contractor; however, such excess expenditure may be covered
by the transfer of other funds where such transfer Is permissible under this Agreement. In
any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the services specified in this

Community Crossroads, Inc.
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Agreement. The Contractor shall make rio adjustments so as to incur additional expenses
in State-funded programs in subsequent years without prior written authorization from the
Stale. The Contractor agrees that revenues shall be allocated by source strictly In
accordance with the approved budget.

10. Allocation of Funding

10.1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be v^hheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
federal or stale law, rule, or regulation applicable to the service provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

11. Billing for Services covered under Medicald

11.1. The parties acknowledge that the Contractor is able to and may bill certain Modicaid
qualified services, described in this Agreement, through the Department approved
Medicaid billing process external to this Agreement, for Medicaid recipients served under
this Agreement.

11.2. Medicaid funding Is separate and apart from the fundirtg sources provided under this
contract as stated in Section 2 above In this Exhibit B. As such, there can be no transfers

l^etween Medicaid funding and Contract funding without the appropriate State, approvals
according to Federal and State Laws, rules or regulations.

Community Crossroads, Inc.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

)

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on fonns provided by
the Department forthat.purpose and shall be made and rem^e at such limes as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shad maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include ad
information necessary to support an.eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish Ihe Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The.
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall t>e permitted to fill out
an appllcdtion form and (hat each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and-no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors cosis, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate vjfilch exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the lerm of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event new rales shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Conlractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contraclor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of Individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for seA'ices
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accountirig procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limrtation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of applicdtion and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ell invoices submitted lo the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as presaibed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way In limrtation of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that (he Contractor shall be held liable for any slate
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Departmeni, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Conlraclor. provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use arvj disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever,

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim'Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the dale of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder, Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
arxl other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligatbns of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after ihe end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits; All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds prov'tded in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

.14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHMS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials

. produced. Including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilttles: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for pn3vidlng services. Ihe Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
slate, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, il will mainlain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are.available at; http:/Avww.ojp.u5doj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13168. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin

'  discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

IB. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currenliy, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
'  Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functk)n(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

thefunction

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. f^onitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services. 4

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
Individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the lota! cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate taws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL; Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541 -A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, lenmination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
Stats shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not t>e required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any infomiation or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication.and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested. '

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the Slate, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Revisions to Exhibit K DHHS Information Security Requirements 11. Methods of Secure
Transmissbn of Data subparagraph 6 is replaced as follows:

6. When User is sending a single piece of mail that Includes confidential data for more
than 400 clients, the User shall only send this piece of mail via certified ground mail.
UPS, or Federal Express within the confidential U.S. to a named individual with
signature requirement

C0/DHHS/U07t3
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New Hampshire Department of Health ar»d Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTiFICATION REGARDING DRUQ-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Worl^placo Act of 1988 (Pub, L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES-OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon v^rhich reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlav/ful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to.inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the Vkiorkplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
' 1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
sut>paragraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was worklr^g, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
Workplace Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant:

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2. 1.3,1.4, 1.6. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided t>elow the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contraclor Name:

Date
Title:

•Extiibii D - Certificalion regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX ,
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, conlinualion. renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Date

' Title:
me:

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Cootractor Initials v
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, asidentrfied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the follov/ing
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective parlicipant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification. In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary parlicipant learns
that its certirication was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," 'participant,* "person." "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal." and
'voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. Seethe
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the
clause titled "Certifcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A parlicipant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required lo, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - CGrtlficslion Regarding Oebarmenl, Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters * 1 ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHMS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

\  13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date

Title;

ExhIWi F - Cenificalion Regarding Debarment. Susperraion Contiador tnilials
And Other Reaponsibility Matters

CUJOHHSnioro

■Responsibility Matters _ / i ̂Page 2 of 2 Date ̂  nj I i



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or.in
the delivery of sen/ices or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race,.color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

. the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation:

- the Education Amendments of1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683.1585-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Include
employment discrimirlation;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJ JDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondisaimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No, 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
crileria for partnerships with bith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection v/ith federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government svide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Date

Title:

zrnn*

Rr> 10/71/U
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTinCATIQN REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 105-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-ChiWren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identiified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;.

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Date \fWhe: ^

Exhibit H - Certificailofi Refiarding Controctor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 ,
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g.' "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Indiyidyal" shall have the same meaning as the term "Individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor IniUals
Heaim Insurance Portability Act . i
Business Associate Agreement xrHyvli o
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law"'shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her desig nee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othewise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. ' The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by lavy, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/20 U Exhiblll ConUdctoi IniUals
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Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

{3) ObllQations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the -
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall.be considered a direct third party t>eneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivingr^l

3/20t4 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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g-

h.

k.

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement,

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) t>usiness days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section .
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of'receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI .
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HJPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Wthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busine
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. . Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended. . ' .

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes.in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Ri
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature of Authorized Represdnfative

Name of Authorized Representative.

C/ITSS
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

a \

ctor

^n^re ofAuthorlzed Representative

"W-VirC/ HA-
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 Exhlbil I
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Business Associate Agreement
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATAICOMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is sui^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS.#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, arxl those
revenues are greater than S25M annually and

10.2. Compensation infonrnation is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human SeArices and to comply.with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

ate v^ameiDate

Title:

Exhibit J - Certincation Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initial
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and {2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, sulx:ontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. "and/or
cooperative agreements?

^ NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to ff2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 7^(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUOHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certlficaiion Regarding the Federal Fundtr^
Accountability And Transparency Act (PFATA) Compliance
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OHMS Information Security Requirements

A. Defrnitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. 'Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar tenn referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personalty identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 46. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incidenr shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security IrKident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Conftdentiai information' or 'Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including withoul limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identtfiabie information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
sen/Ices • of which collection, disctosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FT!), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and conflderttldl information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or (mplied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unviranled disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. last update 1(V09/18 E*hWtK ConfractwInWals.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7  "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) vnll be considered an o^n
network arxl not adequately secure for the transmission off unencrypted PI, PFI.
PHI or conffidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359^:19, biometric
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information vrfiich Is liriked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother s maiden
name, etc.

9  'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "ff^tected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Heatth Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
rwt secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

L RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5lwlup(jate1(>0«/18 txNbilK
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rer^uest for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be tx3und by additlon&l
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additiona) security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only tje used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Applicatipn Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the IntemeL

2. Computer Disks ar>d Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmuting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is engygtg^ and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data tiansmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Senrices. also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confldenlial Data via certifiGd ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. U«up<Jal. 1009/18 ExWWK Contractor InUtl
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmittir»g via an open wireless network.

9 Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(6) or laptop from which Information wlU be
transmitted or accessed.

, 10 SSH RIe Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure RIe Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transnrvit Confidential Data. End User wfli
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disciosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data wrill
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data wtll be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

HL RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection wHh the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confldonlial Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest antl-vlral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam. anti-spyware. end ontl-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive inlruslon-delection and firewall protectton.
6. Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's

Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hostino
infrastructure. ^

8. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems {or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract terminatiorf- and will
obtain written certification for any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physicaify destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzatton, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. 8.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
ttme of the data destruction, and will provide written certlftcatlon to the Department
upon request. The written certifjcation will Irwiude alt details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be iointlv
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the, termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. ^ntractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract and anv
derivative data or files, as follows; '

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycfe, where applicable, (from

. creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).

Security Requiremonts aA yi,
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities, are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Dapartmont system(8). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access t)eing authorized.

8. If the Department determlr^s the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership memt«r within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: aedlt monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and' telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including;
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b}. HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, arxl
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https;//www.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for (he Department of Information Technology poilcies, guidelines, star^ards. and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this ■
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devlcesymedia containing PHI. Pf, or
Pfl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidentlallhformation to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and IndividuaUy
identtftable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that Is
physicaify and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the. Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h.. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with enyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsrte inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officor and Security Officer of ariy
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
■  accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notificallon

procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In siddition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine If personally identifiable information Is Involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach noHficatlon Is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timlrtg, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs assoclaled wHh the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidente and/or Breaches thai implicate PI must t)e addressed and reported as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhh6.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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